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603-27I-9S44 1-800-852-334S Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: l-SOO-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

[7 /

June 24, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
Retroactively amend an existing contract with Harbor Homes, Inc.. (Vendor# 155358), Nashua, NH
03060, to continue providing Mobile Crisis Services and Supports to Region VI, by exercising a
contract renewal option by increasing the price limitalion by $504,537 from $4,390,839 to $4,895,376
and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2020 to October 31, 2020 effective July 1, 2020
upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 19, 2017, item #14A.
It was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 26, 2019, item #20 and
October 23, 2019, item #18. *

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-092-920010-5945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92005945 $250,000 $0 $250,000

,v'

.'..it"' • ■ *'
-J-' - 'f.

Subtotal $250,000 $0 $250,000
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05.95-092-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV , BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92204117

$1,313,61
3

$0 $1,313,613

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92204117

$1,313,61
3

$0 $1,313,613

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92204117 1,513,613 $0 $1,513,613

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92204117 $0 $504,537 $504,537

Subiota!:
$4,140,63

9
$504,537 $4,545,376

Total:

EXPLANATION

$4,390,83
9

$ 504,537 $4,895,376

This risquest Is Retroactive because the Department posted a Request for Proposal for the
required services and did not receive any responses for service coverage of Region VI. This caused
the Department to change Its strategic approach to ensure the required services would be In place.
This abrupt change led to additional negotiations which delayed the execution of the amendment.

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing a Mobile Crisis Response Team and
beds for individuals eighteen (18) years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis,
including those with a co-occurring substance use disorders in the Nashua area.

Each month, the Vendor provides services to approximately 180 unique individuals through
mobile crisis outreach services, phone support, referrals, and crisis apartments, which results In
approximately 342 hospital diversions each month.

The Bureau of Mental Health Services Is New Hampshire's single state mental health
authority. The Bureau seeks to promote full community inclusion for Individuals who are 18 years of
age or older who have severe mental Illness: have severe and persistent mental illness; or are
severely mentally disabled. The State places a high emphasis on supporting Individuals In their
community with a broad range of supports and services that reduce the need for inpatient care.

As part of New Hampshire's Implementation of the Community Mental Health Agreement
(Amanda D. Settlement), the Bureau of Mental Health Services supports the Mobile Crisis Services
and Supports contract for the provision of a mobile crisis team, four (4) community crisis apartments,
and timely accessible services and supports to Individuals 18 years of age and older experiencing a
mental health crisis in NH Community Mental Health Region VI.
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The Vendor will continue to provide mobile crisis services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week; a
central phone triage system where trained clinicians complete an initial risk assessment and
appropriate referrals; and two (2), two-bedroom apartments that provide an alternative to
hospitatization and/or insfitutionalization. The Vendor will collaborate and coordinate with law
enforcement where appropriate. Additionally, the vendor will have the ability to respond to requests
for crisis assessments and interventions within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of
services. Once the Vendor is involved with a case, services and supports can be provided for up to
seven (7) days following the onset of the crisis to ensure individuals remain stable and in the
community.

Harbor Homes. Inc. effectiveness to deliver services will be measured through annual
programmatic audits, ongoing financial audits, and monitoring of the following performance
measures;

•  Response time between referral and community-based service delivery;
•- Ratio of services delivered in the community versus phone/office based services;
•  Number of services provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization including referrals

made for ongoing support and care;
•  Prevalence of lethality assessments conducted to establish baseline need and formulate

crisis and discharge plans;
•  Service outcomes (i.e. if hospitalization was avoided).

The Agreement includes requirements for the Vendor to submit ongoing financial reports.
Financial reports will include prograrti-level and organization-level profit and loss statements, cash
equivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending. The Department will review these reports and
discuss any concerns with the Vendor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close
monitoring of fiscal integrity.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3. the parties had
the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval.
The Department has renewed the contract through prior amendments for one (1) year and is
exercising its option to renew services for an additional four (4) months of the one (1) year available.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the State of New
Hampshire would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the lawsuit
of Amanda D. vs. Governor Hassan. Additionally, individuals experiencing a mental health crisis
could be placed in hospitals or long-term facilities which could result in higher costs to the State.

Area served: Community Mental Health Region VI (Nashua and surrounding towns)

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitt

■'K
ri A. Shibinette

;ommissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6 Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6 contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeastern
Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 19, 2017, (Item #14A); as amended on June 26, 2019, (Item #20) and October 23, 2019 (Item
#19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

October 31, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,895,376

3. Revise Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #1 (as modified in Amendment #2), Section 9,
Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection 9.1 by replacing it in its entirety with the following
(changes are outlined in bold, underline, and italics):

9.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement, and
Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. A!l statements shall be reflective of the
entire Partnership for Successful Living oraQnization and shBtl be submitted on

the same day the reports are submitted to the Board, but no later than the fourth
Wednesday of the month. The Contractor will be evaluated on the following:

9.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

9.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

9.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal
payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature

within three (3) months and should not include common
stock. Any amount of cash from a line of credit should be
broken out separately.

9.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall hav^nbugh
Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials T t y
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

9.1.2. Current Ratio:

9.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

9.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

9.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

9.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

9.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of Us current portion of its long-term debt.

9.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

9.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
. Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next .twelve (12)
months.

9.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

9.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

9.1.4.' Net Assets to Total Assets:

9.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's

ability to cover its liabilities.

9.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total

assets.

9.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

9.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

9.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

9.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

9.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and
amount outstanding for each line.

9.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

9.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-

i
Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

compliance with any loan covenant or agreement.

4. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #1, as modified In Amendment #2, Section 9,
Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection 9.7 to read:

9.7 The Contractor shall create an Audit Sub-Committee of the Board for the purpose of procuring
audit services through an open bid process for fiscal year 2021.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #1, as modified In Amendment #2, Section 9,
Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection 9.8 to read:

9.8 Program-level Profit and Loss Statement for the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region
6 shall be submitted at the time of Invoice. The program-level profit and loss shall include all
revenue sources and all related expenditures for that program, and shall include a budget
column allowing for budget to actual analysis.

6. Add Exhibit B-5 - Amendment #3, Budget SFY21, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor initials
\  •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

All terms and conditions of the Contract arid prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective July 1,2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Name: .Date

Date

Title

Harbor Homes Inc.

^/! / / f

Name: ICii-ll-c VUt 1^
Title:

Harbor Homas Inc. . Amerjdment #3

RFP-2017-DBH-04-MOBILE-01-A03 Page 4 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/22/20

(

Date Name:
Catherine Pinos, Attorney

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit B ~ Amendment #3

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is directly funded with General Funds anticipated to be available based
upon continued appropriation. This contract also authorizes the Contractor to seek
reimbursement from Federal funding sources as specified herein, conditioned upon
continued support of the program by the state and federal governments. Access to
supporting federal funding is dependent upon the selected Contractor meeting the
requirements in accordance with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services, Medical Assistance Program, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.778, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)NH20144.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form
P-37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services.

3. Payment for Mobile Crisis Team Services and Supports - Start-Up Period:
Payment for start-up period expenses incurred by the Contractor, shall be made by
DHHS based on the start-up budget specified in Exhibit 8-3; the total of all such
payments shall not exceed the specified start-up budget total and shall not exceed the
total expenses actually incurred by the Contractor for the start-up period. The following
invoice and payment provisions shall apply to the start-up period:

3.1. Subject to Governor and Executive Council approval for DHHS to make an advanced
payment to the Contractor for certain start-up period costs, DHHS shall make an
advanced payment to the Contractor in the amount of $149,980.

3.2. The balance of DHHS payments made to the Contractor for start-up period expenses
incurred by the Contractor shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.2.1. In the event the Governor and Executive Council does not approve DHHS'
request for the authority to make an advanced payment to the Contractor, as
referenced in paragraph 3.1, all DHHS payments to the Contractor for the start
up period shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.3. Upon conclusion of the start-up period, the Contractor shall submit a start-up period
expenditure report and invoice that documents the actual expenditures the Contractor
incurred for fulfillment of the contracted services applicable to the start-up period. If
applicable, the report and invoice shall also document the Contractor's application of the
start-up payment, referenced in paragraph 3.1, and the invoice total amount due from
DHHS shall be reduced by the amount of such payment. The Contractor shall submit
the start-up period expense report and invoice specified in Exhibit 8-1 for this purpose.

3.3.1. In the event the Governor and Executive Council does not approve DHHS'
request for the authority to make an advanced payment to the Contractor, as
referenced in paragraph 3.1, the Contractor may more frequently submit the
expenditure report and invoice referenced in paragraph 3.3. The Contractor shall
ensure that subsequent expenditure reports and invoices reflect any DHHS
payments received and the subsequent balance due.

RFP-2017-OBH-04-MOBILE-01 Page 1 of 3 Dale 11^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

4. Payment for Mobile Crisis Team Services and Supports - Post Implementation
Period: Payment for all services and expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis,
only for actual expenditures the Contractor incurs for fuifiliment of the contracted
services referenced in paragraph 2, less the amount of revenue the Contractor collects
from third-party payers for delivery of contracted services and the remaining Contractor
Match funds specified in Exhibit B-3, Budget Exhibit 8-4 Amendment U2. Budget
and Exhibit B-S Amendment #3. Budget

4.1. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided by the Mobile
Crisis Team from third-party payers as follows;

4.1.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals:

4.1.1.1. Through the Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
Medicaid Care Management providers: if the individual is enrolled with a
Managed Care Organization (MCO), the vendor will be paid in
accordance with its contract with the MCO.

4.1.1.2. Through,the DHHS Medicaid Fee for Service program: if the individual is
not enrolled with a MCO, the vendor will be paid in accordance with the
NH DHHS Medicaid Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.1.2. For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, the vendor will directly bill the other insurance or payers.

4.1.3. -For individuals v^thout health insurance or other coverage for the services they
receive, the vendor will directly bill DHHS to access contract funds provided
through this Agreement.

4.2. The Contractor shall monthly document the expenses incurred for the fulfillment of
services referenced in paragraph 2, and revenue received in response to the billing
referenced in paragraphs 4.1.1 through 4.1.2. The Contractor shall submit this
documentation on the DHHS approved invoice template and identify the amount of
reimbursement to be billed under this contract for the applicable month. Services not
covered by Medicaid or by other insurance that are eligible for payment of contract funds
shall be paid to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of DHHS invoice receipt".

4.2.1. The Contractor shall itemize all expenses consistent with the budget line item
number in accordance with the Contract Exhibit B-3, Budget Exhibit B-4
Amendment U2. Budget and Exhibit B-5 Amendment #3. Budget, for the
applicable period.

4.2.2. The Contractor shall not seek payment of contract funds for services the
Contractor bills to Medicaid or other Insurance payers unless the following
occurs:

4.2.2.1. If services the Contractor has billed to Medicaid or other insurance payors
are not paid for consistent with the applicable reimbursement
arrangement, the Contractor may invoice DHHS for the cost of services
billed to such payors only after exhausting claims appeal processes or
other resolution avenues allowable under the respective insurance plan.

Harbor Homes Exhibit B - Amendment #3 Conlraclor Initials 3v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

4.2.3. The Contractor shall include the following additional information on each invoice,
at minimum:

4.2.3.1. Agency Name;

4.2.3.2. Amount of request;'

4.2.3.3. Program Name (Mobile Crisis Response Team or Crisis Apartments);

4.2.3.4. Time Period for which reimbursement is requested;

4.2.3.5. Date of Request; and

4.2.4. Beginning July 1, 2017, with each monthly invoice submitted to DHHS for
reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit a Mobile Crisis Teams Compliance
Report (Exhibit B-2). ■

4.2.5. All invoices submitted by the Contractor are subject to approval by the DHHS
designee for the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports program prior to DHHS
processing payment to the Contractor. DHHS reserves the right to withhold
and/or reduce payments if the Contractor is not in compliance as indicated by the
Mobile Crisis Team Compliance Report referenced in paragraph 4.2.4.

4.2.6. The Contractor shall submit invoices electronically to the attention of the DHHS
designee. DHHS shall provide the Contractor with the name and email address
for the DHHS designee upon contract approval, and update this information as
needed.

4.2.7. The Contractor may submit a final payment request to DHHS for reimbursement;
in no event shall the final payment request be submitted later than sixty (60) days
after the Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice and accompanying
documentation may result In nonpayment.

5. When the-contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services, required reports, or other contractual obligations contained in this
Agreement, have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
specified herein.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, a contract amendment limited to the
adjustment of amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related
items, and amendment of related budget exhibits, may be made by written agreement of
both parties through the. Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from
Governor and Executive Council.

■\j

Harbor Homes Exhibit B - Amendment Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980. I further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this

ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number: 0004909130

0&

i&m

o
Osa

(k

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 6th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5EAE366F-E7DC-4EFD-B6E8-F97DB5DFC9E2

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Joel Jaffe. Secretary hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Harbor Homes. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 19. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.(Date) j
VOTED: That Peter Kelleher. President & CEO (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Harbor Hornes. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendment, revisions, or modifications thereto, whichmay in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purposje of this vote.
3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. >—oocusigned by;

Dated: June 19. 2020

feigKSWifMtected Officer
Name:

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20

Joel Jaffe

Secretary



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMOD/YYYY)

6/26/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

namf*'^^ Kimbertv Gutekunst
FHv 603-882-2766 fJx. Noi;

kautekunsti&eatonberube.com

INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A: Eastem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURED ' "^"0
Harbor Homes. Inc.
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER B; Selective Insurance Group inc. 14376

INSURER c; Selective Insurance Companv of America's Flood 12572

INSURER 0: AIX SDeciaitv Insurance Co.

INSURER E: Phiiadeiohia Insurance Comoanv 23850

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 91561987 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WJTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. '

INSR

JJB.
PTPE OF INSURANCE FOUCY NUMBER

COMMERCULGENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR ■

ProfMtlonAl

AbuM

GENL AGGREGATE UMTT APPUES PER:

POLICY LD JECT H LOC
OTHER;

S 2288207

POUCY EFF
iMWDomnm

7/1/2020

POUCY EXP
IMMTOVYYYYH

7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
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MED EXP (Any one pfion)

PERSONAL 8 AOV INJURY
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COMBINED SII^LE UMIT
lEa BCdrMntl

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$ 20,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$ 3,000,000

$$1,000,000

AUT0M0BI1£ LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OViMED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

PROPERTY damage
(Per acddanil

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

(XCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

RETENTIONS
Tsa 1—TOTRr
STATUTE ERWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANYPROPRlETORPARTNER/EXECimVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NK)
If yai, datcrlM undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

030000111752-02 11/26/2019 11/26/2020

□
E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY UMIT $1,000,000

Profassional UabUlty
Managamtnt Liability
Crima

L1VA966006
PHSD1457150
S 2288207 '

7/1/2020
7/1/2020
7/1/2020

7/1/2021
7/1/2021
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D&O
Employ ae DisNonasty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION Of OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOR0101, AddUoMl Ramarts SchadvM, may ba attachad If more spaca it raqulrad)
Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. - FIO# 020351932
Hartior Homes II. inc.
Harbor Homes III, inc.
Harbor Homes, IV, Inc.
Harbor HOmes Claremont
Healthy at Homes, inc. -FID# 043364080
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street
Concord Nh 03301

1

AU'mORlZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO.

LOC tf:

/KCORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AOENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. Inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes. Inc.
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062POUCY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

Welcoming Light, Inc. -FID# 020481648
HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point. LLC
SARC Housing Needs Board, tnc

THIS ADDITIGNAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 popm tit, p- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ACORD 101 (2008/01) <£> 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062
www.harborhomes.org IOMES.inc.

r

A Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

Phone; 603^82-3616

603-881-8436

Fax: 603-595-7414

1^

Mission Statement

To create and provide qnaiit)' residential and supportive ser\'ices for persons (and their families) challenged hy mental
illness and homelessness.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful Living
A collaboration of six offilioted not-for-profit organizations providing southern New Hampshire's rrvDst vulnerable
community members wifh access to housing, health care, education, employment and supportive services.
wvAv.nhpartnership.org

Hai'boi Homes • Healthy at Home • Keystone Hall • Milford Regionol Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force • Welcoming Lighi
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a
Partnership for Successful Living

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua. NH 03063

(603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andoveiv MA

Greenfield, MA
Manchester, Nl-I

Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. and

Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated

statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the

auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess

ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair



presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership
for Successful Living as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful
Living's fiscal year 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified

audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated
December 20, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the

audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements as a whole. The supplementary information on pages 32 through 35 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and

relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

consolidated financial statements.. The information has been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial staterhents and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the

consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 21, 2019 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership

for Successful Living's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance

with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting.and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion

on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful
Living's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part

of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering

Harbor Homes Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living's internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2019



HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2018)

2019 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S  2,2S5,449 .$ 480,242

Restricted cash 1,193,792 1,096,661

Accounts receivable, net 2,981,834 - 2,060,419

Patient receivables, net 645,963 1,301,048

Investments 203,533 192,731

Inventory 116,413 123,078

Other assets 34,084 46,155

Total Current Assets 7,431,068 5,300,334

/•

Non'current Assets:

Property and equipment, net 34,363,395 30,968,341

Other assets. 78,177 41,800

Total Noncurrent Assets 34,441,572 31,010,141

Total Assets $  41,872,640 s . 36,310,475

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit S  1,068,271 $ 1,285,423

Current portion of mortgages payable 560,466 496,608

Accounts payable 2,116,306 865,390

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,938,246 1,546,020

Total Current Liabilities 5,683,289 4,193,441

Long-Term Liabilities:

Construction loan payable (See Note 11) 3,235,875 -

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 586,125 635,015

Mortgages payable, tax credits 528,793 158,237

Mortgages payable, net of current portion 15,002,097 15,783,030

Mortgages payable, deferred 9,890,996 8,571,209

Total Long-Term Liabilities 29,243,886 25,147,491

Total Liabilities 34,927,175 29,340,932

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions 6,705,159 6,851,238

With donor restrictions 240,306 118,305

Total Net Assets 6,945,465 6,969,543

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  41,872,640 $ 36,310,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2018)

Without With

Donor Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support;

Grants S  17,714,758 S  - $ 17,714,758 S 19,525,644
Contributions 475,502 230,542 706,044 686,681

Fundralsing events, net 33,846 . 33,846 48,954

Net assets released from restriction 108,541 (108,541) . -

Total Support 18,332,647 122,001 18,454,648 20,261,279

Revenue:'

Patient services revenues (other), net 7,473,032 7,473,032 5,686,860

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 5,404,995 -  5,404,995 3,664,163

Department of Housing and

Urban Development programs 3,691,769 3,691,769 3,429,882

Veterans Administration programs 2,416,766 2,416,766 2,213,701

Rent and service charges, net 916,499 916,499 867,249

Outside rent 347,725 347,725 555,551

Contracted services 624,952 624,952 594,521

Fees for services 149,466 149,466 344,456

Management fees, net 23,450 23,450 39,124

Miscellaneous 9,834 9,834 137,951

Investment income (loss) 12,540 12,540 40,632

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 689,174 689,174 .

Total Revenue 21,760,202 21,760,202 17,574,090

Total Support and Revenue 40,092,849 122,001 40,214,850 37,835,369

EXPENSES

Program 34,127,481 • 34,127,481 32,969,483

Administration 4,247,544 • 4,247,544 3,721,183

Fundraising 438,954 - 438,954 609,660

Total Expenses 38,813,979 . 38,813,979 37,300,326

Change in net assets before depreciation 1,278,870 122,001 1,400,871 535,043

Depreciation and amortization (1,474,760) . (1,474,760) (1,456,284)

Change in net assets (195,890) 122,001 (73,889) (921,241)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated 6,901,049 118,305 7,019,354 7,890,784

Net Assets, End of Year S  6,705,159 S  240,306 S 6,945,465 $ 6,969,543

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Personnel expenses:

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

. Retirement contributions

Client services:

Rental assistance

Insurance assistance

Food and nutrition services .

Counseling and support services

Medical assistance

Other client assistance

Professional fees for services:

Contracted services

Professional fees

Legal fees

Accounting fees

Advertising and promotion

Conferences, conventions, and meetings

Grants and donations

Information technology

Insurance

Interest expense

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Office expenses

Operational supplies

Staff expenses

Travel

Total Expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Total Functional Expenses

2019 2018

Proeram Ariministratinn Fiindraisinfl Total ' Total

14,580,235 S  2,624,999 5  332,428 5  17,537,662 S  17,227,312

1,988,794 426,756 36,876 2,452,426 2,157,822

1,168,946 205,004 26,071 1,400,021 1,363,849

332,050 178,788 6,320 517,158 453,707

6,041,859 . 6,041,859 ■ 6,475,207

996,870 - 996,870 923,931

246,634 3,187 • 249,821 243,993

11,300 623 - 11,923 60,585

30,557 - -
30,557 20,715

350,613
-

350,613 460,317

2,242,986 4,852 . 2,247,838 1,569,473

133,784 12,524 "  . 146,308 177,854

9,641 123,112 - 132,753 111,633

. 125,510 125,510 106,809

46,289 7,722 8,777 62,788 98,402

266,896 5,721 400 273,017 100,167

471,083 16 - 471,099 518,917

324,434 151,374 3,910 479,718 304,160

155,580 5,707 161,287 163,508

841,250 75,932 1,854 919,036 932,866

104,750 43,254 340 148,344 228,820

1,127,657 124,434 3,195 . 1,255,286 1,934,075

424,741 110,078 18,197 553,016 584,834

1,927,479 8,201 • 1,935,680 806,486

35,967 3,604 47 39,618 38,334

267,086 6,146 539 273,771 236,550

34,127,481 4,247,544 438,954 38,813,979 37,300,326

1,405,152 69,608 1,474,760 1,456,284

35,532,633 5  4,317,152 5  438,954 S  40,288,739 5  38,756,610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2018}

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to

net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of tax credit liability

Unrealized gain on investments

(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets

Inclusion of new entity in consolidated statements

(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts receivable

Patient receivables

Promises to give

Inventory

Other assets

Increase (Decrease) In:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of Investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from.Financing Activities:

Borrowings from lines of credit, net

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Payments on short-term borrowings

Payments on capital leases

Payments on long-term borrovJIngs

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Change

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non-cash financing activities • debt financed fixed assets

2019

(73,889)

1,474,760

(21,044)

(10,802)

(689,174)

49,811

(921,415)

655,085

6,665

(24,306)

1,250,916

343,336 .

2,039,943

(438,091)

1,309,000

870,909

(217,152)

400,000

(400,000)

(821,362)

(1,038,514)

1,872,338

1,576,903

2018

S  (921,241)

1,456,284

(21,043)

724,546

(221,443)

8,000

(55,801)

30,615

(424,085)

593,622

1,169,454

(963,370)

300,812

(662,558)

190,488

(18,304)

(471,269)

(299,085)

207,811

1,369,092

$  3,449,241 S 1,576,903

$  919,036

S  4,947,262

S 932,866

$  1,107,713

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
I
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization

Harbor Homes, Inc. is the largest entity as part of a collaboration of independent
nonprofit organizations, sharing a common volunteer Board of Directors, President/CEO,

and management team, that creates an innovative network to help. New Hampshire
families and individuals solve many of life's most challenging issues. Known collectively

as the "Partnership for Successful Living", the collaboration is an efficient and Innovative

approach to providing services to over 5,000 New Hampshire community members each

year. This holistic approach recognizes that individuality, dignity, good health and

wellness, self-respect, and a safe place to live are key to a person's ability to contribute

to society.

While each nonprofit organization in the collaboration is a separate legal entity within

its own S01(c}(3) public charity status, mission, budget, and staff, they share back-end

resources whenever it is efficient to do so, and collaborate on service delivery when it

leads to better client outcomes. Additionally, whenever expertise in a particular area is

needed by one organization, if another has access to that, it is shared. This reduces the

overall administrative costs of each organization, and ensures that more of every

philanthropic dollar received goes directly to client care. 88% of total annual expenses

are for providing care and services.

Most importantly, by sharing resources and working as one, the collaboration is able to

coordinate and better deliver a comprehensive array of interventions designed to
empower individuals and families and ultimately build a stronger community. Outcomes

are enhanced through this model.

The members of the collaboration, and organizations included In these consolidated
financial statements, include the following related entities. All inter-entity transactions

have been eliminated. Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated financial statements

are hereinafter referred to as the "Organization".

Harbor Homes, /nc. - housing and healthcare

Consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.



Harbor Homes, Inc. - housing and healthcare

Has provided supports for New Hampshire's most vulnerable citizens since 1982. It

has grown from a single group home for individuals who were de-institutionalized,

into a full continuum of housing, healthcare, and supportive services for

communities facing low-incomes, homelessness, and disability. Housing programs

provide housing for 2,000 individuals annually, and its Federally Qualified Health
Center for the Homeless provides affordable healthcare to more than 3,000. In

Greater Nashua over the past decade, Harbor Homes has effectively ended

homelessness for veterans and for persons living with HIV/AIDS, and has
decreased chronic and unsheltered homelessness substantially. Harbor Homes is

on the frojjt lines of Nashua's opioid crisis; its extensive services have reduced
overdose deaths markedly.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - housing project management

A single-member New Hampshire Limited Liability Company that developed and

manages Boulder Point, LLC, a permanent supportive housing facility in .
Plymouth, New Hampshire for up to 30 low income/homeless veteran

households. The project completed construction in July 2019. Harbor Homes,

Inc. is the sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC. The

entity does not directly serve clients.

Boulder Point, LLC - housing project development

A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company, whose purpose is to acquire, own;

develop, construct and/or rehabilitate, manage, and operate a new veterans

housing project in Plymouth, New Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a

0.01% investor member and the manager member. The entity does not directly

serve clients.

Welcoming Light, Inc., Harbor Homes II, Inc., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH

Ownership, Inc. - housing programs and ownership

These four nonprofits provide residential services to the elderly and/or low-income

individuals experiencing a chronic behavioral issue or disability, and were created by

Harbor Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors in response to federal regulations.

Combined, these entities serve approximately 35 individuals annually.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism d/b/a Keystone Hall - substance misuse

treatment

Keystone Hall is Greater Nashua's only comprehensive substance use disorder '

treatment center. Every year, it catalyzes change in 800 individuals, including those



experiencing homelessness, those without adequate insurance, and pregnant and
parenting women. No one is denied treatment due to an Inability to pay; most
clients pay nothing for services. While in residential treatment clients have all basic
needs met, including food, transportation, clothing, and Integrated healthcare
through Partnership for Successful Living affiliates. Substance use disorder
treatment services are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally competent,

and include residential {with a specific program for pregnant and parenting women

and their children), outpatient, intensive outpatient, and drug court services.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - In-home health care

A Medicare-certified home health agency. Healthy at Home helps clients address

physical and behavioral health challenges to live full, happy lives at home by
providing consistent, compassionate care and daily-living assistance. Health at Home
works hard to serve clients, regardless of financial barriers. Many of its 250 clients

are among the hardest to serve, as their Insurance may not fully cover incurred
expenses. Ultimately, services keep clients In their own homes, and out of hospitals,
institutions, or nursing homes. Staff provide skilled nursing, physical therapy,"
occupational therapy, speech therapy, homemaking services, respite care, and
Alzheimer's care and dementia care.

SARC (Salem Association for Retarded Citizens) Housing Needs Board, Inc. -
housing programs and ownership

SARC operates a permanent supportive housing facility (Woodview Commons) In
Salem, New Hampshire for individuals with developmental or behavioral health

issues. Harbor Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors took over responsibility for this

entity In fiscal year 2019. SARC serves 8 Individuals annually.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. (the Task Force) - HIV/AIDS
services

A leader in HIV/AIDS services in New Hampshire that provides quality, holistic

services to those with HIV/AIDS. All 200 clients are low-Income, and they may face
homelessness, mental illness, and substance use disorder. Outcomes are exemplary.

Whereas viral suppression rate among individuals with HIV/AIDS is 45% nationally,
more than 90% of the Task Force's clients are routinely virally suppressed. In
partnership with its Partnership for Successful Living affiliates, the Task Force
ensures that no individual with HIV or AIDS lives in homelessness In Greater Nashua.

The Task Force operates In Greater Nashua and Keene, and is the State of New
Hampshire's sole contractor among AIDS Service Organizations for supportive
services, subcontracting to other New Hampshire AIDS Service Organizations

statewide. To counter the public health risks of the opioid crisis, the Task Force
initiated the Syringe Services program of Nashua Area in 2017.
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Milford Regional Counseling Services ~ affordable counseling

Milford Regional Counseling is in process of fully integrating with Harbor Homes, Inc.,
but offers affordable counseling to those without Insurance or sufficient income for
treatment. It serves approximately 200 individuals and families each year, and a third
of clients pay a reduced rate for care. Specifically, Milford Regional Counseling
provides individuals, couples, and families with counseling and psychotherapy via talk,
expressive play, and relational therapy. It specializes in serving veterans, those living
with HIV/AIDS, the homeless, and individuals dually-diagnosed with mental illness and
substance use disorder issues.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-
profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.
The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of
consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return.
ASU 2016-14 has been implemented in fiscal year 2019 and the presentation in these
consolidated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents -

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months
or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,
are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based on historical
experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent
collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.
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Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the Organization's

Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts

result from the provision for bad debts. Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted

from the allowance for doubtful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful

accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net

collections, business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health

care coverage, and other Indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party

coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment balances due for
which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the Organization analyzes

contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful collections and a

provision for doubtful collections, if necessary. For receivables associated with self-pay

patients, the Organization records a significant provision for doubtful collections in the

period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients

are unable to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all

reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance
for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory Is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower of cost or

net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair

values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in

net assets in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40

years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser

of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise

disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss
is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs

that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.
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The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be

recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and

eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment in fiscal year 2019.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly,.net assets and changes therein
are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain' grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain
grantor-} imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events

specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while
permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets in
accordance with the provisions of additional donor-imposed^stipulations or a Board

approved spending policy. Donor-Imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-
reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in

which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as Increases

in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor
to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets
with donor restrictions. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have

an Implied restriction to be used in the year payment is due and, therefore, are reported
as net assets with donor restrictions until payment is due unless the contribution is
clearly intended to support activities of the current year. Conditional promises, such as
matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.
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Donated Sen/ices and In-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash or
investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its
estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset and its
estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated supplies
are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses when the donated
items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial number of
volunteers. Those vplunteers have donated significant amounts of time and services in
the Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns. However, the
majority of the contributed services do not meet the criteria for recognition in financial
statements. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed
services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services
would have been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills,
and are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered. Self-pay revenue is
recorded at published charges with charitable allowances deducted to arrive at net self-
pay revenue. All other patient services revenue is recorded at published charges with
contractual allowances deducted to arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates

are subject to revisions under the provisions of reimbursement regulations.
Adjustments for such revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in
third-party receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity
care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Since the
Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care, these amounts are reported as deductions from revenue.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of, service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent
audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant Guidance, and
review by grantor agencies. The review could result In the disallowance of expenditures
under the terms of the grant or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior
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experience, the Organization's management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if

any, would not materially affect the financial position of the Organization.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated

Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated Statement

of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Accordingly, certain costs ha^e been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.

Change in Net Assets Before Depreciation

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the Organization's
change in net assets, the change in net assets before depreciation has been provided in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the exception of
Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have been recognized by .the

Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal

Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section S01(c)(3),

qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined not.to be

private foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990), is
required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt purpose is subject to

income tax. In fiscal year 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. and Milford Regional Counseling

Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business income tax and filed an Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member. New Hampshire Limited Liability

Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC

has elected tp be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has elected to be

treated as a partnership.
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Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk
j' .

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions

believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits.

To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk
associated with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection

rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from
governmental agencies and entitles supportive of the Organization's mission.
Investments are monitored regularly by the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,

market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation

technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that

market participants would use In pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions

about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset or liability

based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.

Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about

the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices

that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.
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Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are

developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they

generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1 inputs are
not available for many of the assets and liabilities that the Organization is required to
measure at fair value (for example, unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind
contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets and

unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 5.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 10.

•  Recurring measurement of loans mortgages payable - Notes 11 -14.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables, inventory,
other assets, accounts payable and, accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate

fair value.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The ASU's
core principle is that an organization will recognize revenue when it transfers promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This
standard also includes expanded disclosure requirements that result in an entity

providing users of financial statements with comprehensive information about the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity's contracts with customers. This standard will be effective for the Organization for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in the process of
evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with
lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and lease

liability on the balance sheet at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be
classified as either finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for

17



the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. This ASU will be effective
for the Organization for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The Organization is
currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the
consolidated financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments, the ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured
at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.
Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly-
recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected
credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the
Organization for the fiscal year ending June 30', 2022. The Organization is currently in
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated
financial statements.

Contributions Received and Contributions Mode

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The purpose of this
amendment, due to diversity in practice, is to clarify the definition of an exchange
transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether contributions are unconditional

or conditional, this standard will be effective for the Organization for the fiscal year

ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year consolidated
financial statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one yearofthe date of the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Financial assets as year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Receivables

Investments

Total financial assets

2019

S  2,255,449

1,193,792

3,627,797

203,533

2018

7,280,571

$  480,242

1,096,661

3,361,467

192,731

5,131,101

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions

Less: net assets with purpose restrictions to be met

In less than a year

Restricted cash

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next twelve months

240,306

(240,306)

1,193,792

1,193,792

$  6,086,779

118,305

(118,305)

1,096,661

1,096,661

$  4,034,440

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its

available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve months, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and
anticipates sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-
restricted resources. As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has

several revolving credit lines available to meet cash flow needs.

4. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash at June 30, 2019 consists of escrow and reserve accounts which are held

for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows

Reserve for replacements

Residual receipt deposits

5ecurity deposits

Total

$  471,769

619,194 *

43,224 *

59,605

$  1,193,792

*Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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5. Investments

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2019:

Fair

I  Value Level 1 Level 3

Equities $ 26,530 $ 26,530 $
Other investments . 177,003 - . 177,003

Total $ 203,533 S 26,530 $ 177,003

6. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 consist of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net

Grants $ 1,798,715 S $ 1,798,715

Medicaid/Medicare 731,267 (55,043) 676,224

Other 268,506 -  (2,870) 265,636

Residents and patients 244,127 (48,787) 195,340

Insurance 44,553 (3,062) 41,491

Contributions 3,000 - 3,000

Security deposits 1,428 1,428

Total $ 3,091,596 S  (109,762) S 2,981,834

7. Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center,

consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Receivable Allowa nee Net

Medicaid/Medicare $ 233,671 S (28,884) $ 204,787

Other 561,134 (119,958) 441,176

Total $ 794,805 $ (148,842) $ 645,963
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8. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of June 30, 2019 is
presented below:

Land $ 4,327,743

Land improvements 54,944

Buildings ^ 27,337,257

Building improvements 7,171,172

Software 1,075,408

Vehicles 404,192 '

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 759,036

Medical and dental equipment 236,976

Leasehold improvements 7,542

Construction in progress 6,048,375

Subtotal 47,422,645

Less: accumulated depreciation ■ (13,059,250)

Total $ 34,363,395

Depreciation expense totaled $1,471,904 for the year ended December 31, 2019.

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities at June 30, 2019 include the following:

Current Lone-Term Total

Accrued interest on debt $ 115,429 $ - $ 115,429

Compensated absences 224,386 452,714 677,100

Deferred compensation plan - 44,400 44,400

Deferred revenue 198,357 - 198,357

Other 101,849 27,280 129,129

Payroll and related liabilities 799,943 - 799,943
Retainage on construction project 498,282 - 498,282

Security deposits - 61,731 61,731

Total ■ $ 1,938,246 $ 586,125 $ 2,524,371
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10. Lines of Credit

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc.

$1,000,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A. due January 31, 2020, secured by

all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly
interest payments to TO Bank, N. A. at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%
adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$423,170 at an interest rate of 6.50%. The Organization was not in compliance with
certain debt covenant requirements in fiscal year 2019, however TD Bank has

granted a waiver.

Harbor Homes, Inc.
f

$500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank, N. A. due January 31, 2020, secured
by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly
interest payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%
adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$361,863 at an interest rate of 6.50%. Debt covenant requiremients have been met
in fiscal year 2019.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

$750,000 line of credit available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on
demand, and secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a

rriinimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate

plus 1.00% (6.50% at June 30, 2019) to Merrimack County Savings Bank. As of
June 30, 2019, the credit line had an outstanding balance of $84,302. Debt covenant
requirements have been met in fiscal year 2019.

Healthy at Home, Inc.
\

$250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A., due January 31, 2020, secured by

all business assets. The interest rate is the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00%

(6.50% at June 30, 2019).'The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $198,936
at June 30, 2019. Debt requirements have been met in fiscal year 2019.

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

11. Construction Loan Payable

At June 30, 2019, Boulder Point, LLC had a construction loan payable totaling
$3,235,875. This temporary loan relates to the Boulder Point project and will be
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converted to permanent debt in October 2019 with two mortgages from Enterprise
Bank totaling $1,130,000, the balance from Low Income Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding, as
well as various other grants and donations. The construction loan is secured by real
property and is categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

12. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor Homes, Inc. to
the Community Development Finance Authority through the Community Development
Investment Program, payable through the sale of tax credits to donor organizations. At
June 30, 2019> these tax credits totaled $428,793.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income Housing Tax
Credits (LIHTC).

Mortgages payable, tax credits are secured by real property, are amortized over various
years, are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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13. Mortgages Payable

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2019 consisted of the1 following:

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Freouencv Rate Maturity ProoertvASpniritv

;  3,572,442 S 19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH
3,363,000 (1)12} - Interest only 4.00% 02/28/20 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard In Nashua, NH
1,129,465 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33 335 Somervllle Street in Manchester, NH
1,125,000 (1) • Interest only 6.00% 02/28/20 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH
1,095,236 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street In Manchester, NH
1,021,468 7,768 Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
613,088 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH
563,773 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua, NH

564,112 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH

431,962 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street In Nashua, NH

344,145 5,276 Monthly 9.25% (3) 12/01/26 Allds Street in Nashua, NH

309,370 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03/29/21 14 Maple Street In Nashua, NH

238,895 3,369 Monthly 9.28% (3) 01/01/28 Chestnut Street In Nashua, NH
238,106 1,425 Monthly - 4.75% 04/06/42 99 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH
208,754 1,731 Monthly 7.00% (3) 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH
173,934 3,184 Monthly • 9.25% (3) 05/01/25 North Main Street In Nashua, NH

.  114,599 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

111,236 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amherst Street In Nashua, NH
102,377 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 11/10/29 24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH
99,028 2,543 Monthly 9.25% (3) 04/01/23 Salem, NH property
87,039 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua, NH

78,535 2,385 Monthly 9.25% (3) 08/01/22 3 Winter Street in Nashua, NH

43,366 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory StreeMn Nashua, NH

15,628,930 Subtotal

(66,367) Debt Issuance costs

(560,466) Payments due in the next fiscal year

15,002,097 Mortgages payable, net of current portion

{1} To be converted to term loan at maturity.
(2) Principal payments of $3,000 per month have been required and paid since March, 2019.
(3) HUD issued and backed.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the mortgages payable:

Year Amount

2020 $ 560,466

2021 627,553

2022 669,446

2023 602,749

2024 605,075

Thereafter 12,563,641

Total $ 15,628,930

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

14. Mortgages Payable, Deferred

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding, secured by real property, total
ing $9,890,996 at June 30, 2019. These loans are interest free, and are not required to
be repaid unless the Drganization'is in default with the terms of the loan agreements or,
for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that program. The deferred loans

are subordinate to any non-deferred loan on the related property.
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300,000

300,000

580,000

491,000

80,000

65,000

1,216,000

436,400

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

City of Manchester:

Somerville Street property $

Total City of Manchester

City of Nashua:

Factory Street property

Spring Street property

Strawberry Bank condominiums

High Street fire system

Total City of Nashua

Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Strawberry Bank condominiums

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):

Boulder Point property

Factory Street property

Somerville Street property

Spring Street property

Amherst Street property

Total FHLB

NHHFA:

Boulder Point property

Amherst Street property

Factory Street property

Spring Street property

Somerville Street property

Total NHHFA

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $

{1} Will be automatically forgiven at the end of the term.
(2) Non-recourse.

Deferred mortgages payable are secured by real property and are categorized In the fair
value hierarchy as Level 2.

436,400

500,000

400,000

400,000

398,747

385,000

2,083,747 (1)

1,822^500
1,500,000

982,349

550,000

1,000,000

5,854,849 (2)

9,890,996
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15. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to expenditure for the following specified
purposes at June 30, 2019:

Purpose Amount

Capital improvements $ 25,000

Client services 18,122

Dental 12,500

.  Housing 125,000
Miscellaneous 32,700

Special events 26,984

Total $ 240,306

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or by the passage of time.

16. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC), Net

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services provided
through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-party payor, and
managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual rates for services rendered.

For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Organization
recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for services provided or on the
basis of discounted rates if negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity
care services are computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family
size. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Organization's
uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the
Organization records a provision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in the

period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified
as a charity patient byreference to certain established policies, which define charity
services as those costs for which no payment is anticipated.. The Organization uses
federally established poverty guidelines to assess the level of discount provided to the
patient. The Organization is required to provide a full discount to patients with annual

incomes at or below 100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If
the patient is unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All
patients are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on household
size and household income.- No discounts may be provided to patients with incomes
over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.
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Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of provision for bad debts and contractual allow
ances and discounts, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charges Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid S 3,796,423 $ (737,829) S . S 3,058,594 S  1,505,498

Medicare 2,358,692 (814,259) -
1,544,433 1,024,352

Third-party 1,245,677 (478,688) -
766,989 1,069,007

Sliding fee/free care 644,211 -

(518,635) 125,576 2,960

Self-pay 188,259 • (10,390) 177,869 .303,800

Subtotal $ 8,233,262 S (2,030,776) $ (529,025) 5,673,461 3,905,617

Provision for bad debts (268,466) (241,454)

Total $ 5,404,995 $  3,664,163

17. Client Rental Assistance

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents on behalf of the
consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6 million is comprised of leases held in
the Organization's name, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

18. Functionalized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, those
expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The
majority of expenses are direct costs that are charged to the applicable cost center,
program, grant, and/or function. Costs that are not directly related to a cost center,
program, grant, and/or function, or allocated as noted below, are accumulated into an
indirect cost pool and charged using direct salaries, wages, and benefits as the allocation
base. Certain individual cost elements are charged on a direct allocation basis, as
follows:

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits - Except for certain key members of management,
employees charge their time directly to specific grants, contracts, or other activities.
Charges are supported by labor distribution reports and timesheet , records, which
reflect the actual activities under each. Fringe benefits include unemployment

insurance, workers' compensation, FICA, health insurance, dental insurance, short-term
and long-term disability, and matching retirement contributions. Benefits are also
directly charged, using a methodology similar to that used for salaries and wages.
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Occupancy Costs - Occupancy costs are allocated as follows:

•  Interest on debt-financed property is allocated based on the purpose/use of the

property.

•  Rent is allocated based on square footage.

•  Utilities are charged based on the purpose/use of the property.

•  Depreciation is allocated based on the purpose/use of the property.

19. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent supportive housing

development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for homeless veterans, and five
two-bedrOom apartments for low-income families located on Boulder Point Drive in
Plymouth, New Hampshire. The New Hampshire Community Development Finance

Authority has awarded Harbor Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project.
Harbor Homes, Inc. is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive

a developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed, the

29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable, permanent

supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor Homes, Inc. and White
River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide essential supportive services and case

management on-site.

20. Deferred Compensation Plan

In fiscal year 2019, the Organization offered a 401(k) retirement plan to qualifying

employees. Upon meeting the eligibility criteria, ernployees can contribute a portion of
their wages to the 401(k} plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the employee

contribution based on years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the

Organization for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $463,822.

The Organization also maintains a deferred compensation plairfOr certain directors (the
SA Plan). The deferred compensation liability under the SA Plan was $44,400 as of

June 30, 2019 and was recorded as a long-term liability. This liability is offset by a

corresponding long-term asset.
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21. Concentration of Risk

The Organization received revenue in fiscal year 2019 as follows;

Grants 44%

Patient services revenues (other), net 19%

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 13%

Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%

Department of Veterans Affairs 6%

All other support and revenue 9%

Total 100% .

22. Contingencies

The health care industry Is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and
local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or
unasserted at this time. Government activity continues to increase with respect to
investigations and allegations concerning possible violations by healthcare providers of
fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could result in the imposition of
significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient service
previously billed. Management is not aware of any material incidents of noncompli-
ance; however, the possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if
any, are not presently determinable.

23. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, Stofe of
Cosh Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in this update require that
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain the change during the fiscal year of
restricted cash as part of the total of cash and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted
cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to the same such

amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ' $ 2,255,449
Restricted Cash 1,193,792

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 3,449,241
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24. Prior Period Restatement

Beginning net assets for fiscal year 2019 have been restated by $49,811 to include the

assets, liabilities, and net assets of SARC Housing Needs Board, Inc. which is now
included in these consolidated financial statements. On April 1, 2019 Harbor Homes, Inc.

and Affiliates d/b/a Partnership for Successful Living's Board of Directors took over
responsibility for this organization.

25. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 21, 2019, which Is the date

the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Events subsequent to year end, include the following:

•  Upon completion of the'Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project, additional Low

Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding of approximately $2.5 million will be

provided to Boulder Point, LLC.
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HARSOR HOMES, PK. AND AFFOATES d/W*
PAXTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSfUl UVWC

CensoidKing Sutenwnt o( Fkundal Foiitien

(With Csmparjtive Totab *t el hint 30.20U|

Assm

Currtn: AsstS:

Cash and ash tqiivalenis

Restiioedash

Accounts reofraWe. net

Fadeni receivaMev net

Sue from related erganbatioRS

Investments

inventory

Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Prcpcrty and equipmeni, net

investment in Bouldef Foini

Prepaid land lease

Other assets

Tetal Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

UASIimES ANONET ASSETS

Current UabBdes:

lines of credit

Current portion of mortgages payable

Due to related organitallons

Accounts payable

Harbor

Homes*

RouUer

Wnt. lie

Harbor

Homes II. Inc.

Greater Nashua

Council on

Akohelisni

822331 S S0931S S

*12.214 471,769

2.159.519

645.963

U56.631

203313

116.413

1323 S
3Q3S6

1342

502

23368

601

4.516 S

15.139-

688368 5

49.663

477304

36342

Healthy at

Home, inc.

45,971

152,495

Welcoming

UchL Inc.

855

73J326

6.410

5ARC Housing

Needs

Board. Irt.

36311

117,257

407

Southern NH

HIV/AIOS

TasE Force. Inc.

MUiortl Reponal

Counseling

Services. Inc Subtotal Eliminations

116330 S

180306

9,000

20320 5

2.450

2.255.449 S

1.193.792

2.9S1334

645.963

1.192373

203333

116313

(1.192373)

2019

Total

2355.449 S

1,193.792

2381334

645363

203333

116313

343B4

22.421.245 295336 238300 297.455 5,395396 7.737

2018

Total

480342

1396,661

2360319

1301348

192.731

123378

46.155

5325301 981.687 34,225 24.971 19.655 1.270,199 203331 80.291 " 154,575 306.436 22370 8.623.941 (1.192373) 7.431.068 5,300334

21.902.650

441318

77377

6,063.281

285,000

295.536 238.000 297.455 5.39S.096 7.737 188,741 38367 6.032

600

34.433.395

441318

285300

78.177

(70300)

(441318)

(285300)

34363.395

78,177

30.968.341

41300

27346346 5 7329,968 $ 329.761 5 262371 5 317.110 S 6.665.295 S 211368 5 269332 5 193,442 5 313.068 5 22370 5 43.861331 5 (1.9S8391) 5 41372.640 5,

785,033 " 5
328.279

561.198

1.212.324

12.172

720.140

32349

171.076

3,500

19.128

7,454

5,730

84302 5

134.586

U,660

456

198,936 S

145385

58.048

23344

229,757

7.661

12.280

18388

9.133

11,156

84337

21.587

1,068.271 S

56a466

1.192,873

2.116,306

(1.192373)

(285300)

1368.271 5

560.466

2.116306

1.938,246

36310.475

1.285,423

496,608

865.390

1.546320
Accrued expenses and ether BabUlties

Total Current Liabilities 4389.256 1,230394 210388 34.194 14.138 353.423 466.996 263336 66.637 110.113 21.587 7.161.162 (1.477.873) 5.683,289 4.193,441

Long-Term LiaUBties;

Construction ban payable (See Note 11)

Accrued expenses and other EabSties

Mortgages payable, tax credits

Morgages payable, net of current portion
Morgages payable, deferred
Total Long-Term UabKlles

Total UabBiiies

484363

428,793

19.760371

333S37S

453,190

100300

3318

311,296

2313

219.767

1.233

516,400

54.437

3.482.725

1385,000

16.109 1.023

150390

3355

76.748

7,497

3,235375

1327.143

528.793

15302397

9.890.996

(441.018)

3J3S37S

586.125

528,793

15.002397

9390.996

635315

158,237

15.783,030

8.571309

16341.423

21.230.679

6.111.565

7.342.1S9

314314

525302

222380

256.474

5.422.162 16.109 151.618 79303 7.497 29.684.904 (441318)

531.771 5,775.585 483.105 '415,454 146.440 117.610 2L537 36.846366 (1.918391) 34.927,175 29.340.932

Net Assets;

Without donor restrictions

With donor restriclions

Total Net Assets

6.475361 (12.191) (195,441) 6.497 (214.661) 889.710 (272.037) (146.422) 47302 195.458 1.383 6.775.159

240306

(70.000) 6.7DS.1S9

240.306

6351.238

118305

6,716.167 112.191) (195.441) 6,497 (214.6611 889.710 12723371 (146.422) 47302 19S.4SS U83 7.015.465 (703CO

Total UabBties and Net Assets 5^^73463^ 5^32936^ S_

'Harbor Homes censists e( Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH nymouch. LLC ■ 5ee Note 1.

329.761 s 747371 s 317.110 $ 6365.295 5 211368 $ 269332 $_ 193,442 5 313.068 S 22.970 S 43361331 5 (1.9883911 5 41372.640 5 36310.475

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HMBO* HOMES, IMC. ANO AfFKlATTS d/b/*

FAItTNtXSHIP FOK SUCCESSFUL IJVINe

CemeWttkiE SMLtmcAt oF AciMtin

For i.Se rear Ended fune 30.2019

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended lune 30, 201B}

Greater Mashwa

Harbor Boulder Harbor Harbor HH Coundon' Healthy

Homes' Point LLC Homes II Int. Homes III inr DwnersNn Inr. AlrtNio«sm • at Home Inc.

SUPP^ AND REVENUE

Support:

Grants 5  13424462 5 5 5 5  5 1.959.179 5

Contrtaitiom 638,201 350 30.951 459

Fufsdralslns events, net 21459 6443 (1.000)

Toul Support 14.483.922 350 1.996.673 (541)

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net 3.312.320 2.762.723 1.397,989

Patient services revenues (FQHO. net 5.404.995

Department of Houslnf and

Urban Oevelopment proframs 3.217.481 126,662 102,292 25.077

Veterans Administration procrams 2.416,766

Rent and service charfes, net i02.on 43,573 30429 22.266 (11467)

Outside rent 491,248 4.179

Contracted services 243.34S 240J55 137,157

Fees for services 131,132 170

ManaEement fees 43,536

Ulscellarseous 5,634 79 165 1.002 2467

Investment UKomc (loss) 12,173 10 30 8 191

Gain (loss) on disposal of fbted assets 581,137

Total Revenue 16.661444 170,245 132.430 47.516 3.008.820 1,526,746

Total Support and Revenue 31,145.766 350 170,245 132.430 47.516 5.005.493 1,526.205

EXPENSES

Profram 27402.147 12,541 110.945 90.924 34479 3,592,336 1.271.699

Administration 2476452 18549 U.5S1 14.494 804,472 339491

Fundraising 396,505 12.092 13.775

Total Eipenses 30.275,504 12441 129.494 109475 49.373 4.408.900 1.674465

OTHER INCOME

Recoupment of prior write-off 200,000

Total Other Incorrte 200,000 -.

Chanfe In net assets before depredation 1.07a262 (12.191) 40.751 22.955 (1.857) 596493 (ia.360)

Depreciation and amortiratlon 1,157,515 25,113 21.299 14.349 225.296 5.577

Change In net assets (87,253) (11.191) 15,628 1.656 (16.206) 371,297 (153.937)

Net Assets (DeOdt), 8eginrdn| of Year, as restated 6403,420 -  (211469) 4.841 (19S.45S) 518,413 (118.100)

Net Assets (Defldt). End of Year 5  6.716,167 5 (12.191) 5  (195.441) 5  6.497 5  (214.661) 5 839,710 5  (272437)

'Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes. irK. and HH Pfrmovih. tXC • See Note 1.

Weteominf

Ueht.lnc.

IMS

t3S

79,18S

20.934

12S.2J6

33,427

8,225

SARC Housinc

Needs

Board Int.

23,450

(25)

|40,]72)

24,44S

(64,617)

HIJOS)

22.553-

8.687

22.093

11.514

(2,156)

653

' (2.609)

49411

5oulhem NH

HIV/AIOS

1.931417

26472

6,706

2019

Total

6.6SS

20,400

2.142.I4S

101.338

7,408

(34,629)

503

(35,132)

230,590

5  17,714.758

6413 706,044

(500) 33,846

77,453

31.520

949

109,922

(200400)

(200,000)

(90325)

[90425]

91,708

7,473,032

S,404.99S

34.482.378

4.299468

438.954

1.400471

1.474.760

(73489)

7.089.354

7,473,032

5.404.995

1483 5 7,015.465 5

(354497)

(52.324)

(7QJ00)

JTOOO^

34.127.481

4.247,544

438,954

1,400,871

1.474,760

(73,889)

7.019.354

2018

Tctai

17.714.758 5 19.525,644

706,044 686,681

33446 48.954

5486460

3,664.163

3,795,207 (103.438) 3,691.769 3.429482

2.416.766 2,416,766 2,213,701

916,499 916.499 867.249

15.750 511.177 (163,452) 347,725 555.551

26.735 656,480 (31428) 624452 594.521

63431 214,733 (65467) 149,466 344.456

66.986 (43.536) 23,450 39.124

31 9434 9434 137.951

12.540 12.540 40.632

1OS.037 689.174 689.174

213484 22.167,423 (407.2211 21,760,202 17.574.090

219,597 40.622471 (407.221) 40,214,850 37435,369

32.969,483

3,721,283

609.660

535,043

1,456,284

(921,241)

7490,784

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, tNC.

Statement of Financial Position • Harbor Homes, Inc.

June 30, 2019

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Harbor Total

Homes Harbor Harbor Harbor HH Harbor

Proeram Homes 1 Homes VI Homes. Inc. Plymouth. LLC Homes*

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $• 814,790 S 498 S 13,643 S 828,931 S . $ 828,931

Restricted cash 290,316 57,248 64,650 412,214 - 412,214

Accounts receivable, net 2,157,629 517 1,373 2,159,519 - 2,159,519

Patient receivables, net 645,963 645,963 . 645,963

Due from related organizations 715,903 - 715,903 440,728 1,156,631

investments 203,533 • 203,533 - 203,533

inventory 116,413 - 116,413 - '  116,413

Other assets 2,397 - 2,397 - 2,397

Total Current Assets 4,946,944 58,263 79,666 5,084,873 440,728 5,525,601

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net 21,530,551 89,679 282,420 21,902,650 21,902,650

Investment in Boulder Point 441,018 •  • - 441,018 ■  - 441,018

Other assets 77,577 - - 77,577 - 77,577

' Total Noncurrent Assets 22,049,146 89,679 282,420 22,421,245 22,421,245

. Total Assets $  26,996,090 $ 147,942 5 362,086 27,506,118 $ 440,728 27,946,846

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit 5  785,033 $ - $ - s 785,033 s - $ 785,033

Current portion of mortgages payable 299,566 22,304 6,409 328,279 - 328,279

Due to related organizations - 9,734 110,736 120,470 440,728 561,198

Accounts payable 1,209,508 1,054 1,762 1,212,324' - 1,212,324

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,500,513 604 1,305 1,502,422 . 1,502,422

Total Current Liabilities 3,794,620 33,696 120,212 3,948,528 440,728 4,389,256

Long-Term Liabilities:

Construction loan payable (See Note 11) • - - -

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 480,788 2,188 1,587 484,563 484,563

Mortgages payable, tax credits 428,793 • 428,793 428,793

Mortgages payable, net of current portion 10,502,395 56,231 202,345 10,760,971 10,760,971

Mortgages payable, deferred 5,167,096 - - 5,167,096 5,167,096

Total Long-Term Liabilities 16,579,072 58,419 203,932 16,841,423 16,841,423

Total Liabilities 20,373,692 92,115 324,144 20,789,951 440,728 21,230,679

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions 6,382,092 55,827 37,942 6,475,861 - 6,475,861

With donor restrictions .240,306 - - 240,306 - 240,306

Total Net Assets 6,622,398 55,827 37,942 6,716,167 - 6,716,167

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  26,996,090 s 147,942 S 362,086 s 27,506,118 s 440,728 S 27,946,846

•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC •See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Activities • Harbor Homes, Inc.

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Harbor Total

Homes Harbor Harbor Harbor HH Harbor

Program Homes 1 Homes VI Homes. Inr. Plymouth LLC Homes*

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support:

Grants S  13,824,062 S S S  13,824,062 $  5 13,824,062
Contributions 633,201 5,000 638,201 638,201

Fundralslng events, net 21.6S9. - 21,659 21,659

Total Support 14,478,922 5,000 14,483,922
•  - 14.483,922

Revenue:

Patient sendees revenues (other), net 3,312,320 - 3,312,320 3,312,320

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 5,404,995 5,404,995 5,404,995

Department of Housing and

Urban Development programs 3,045,809 94,488 77,184 3,217,481 3,217,481 '
Veterans Administration programs 2,416,766 2,416,766 2,416,766

Rent and service charges, net 752,999 28,740 20,338 802,077 802,077

Outside rent 491,248 - 491,248 491,248

Contracted services 243,345 . 243,345 243,345

Fees for services 131,132 • 131,132 131,132

Management fees 43,536 - 43,536 43,536

Miscellaneous 5,396 238 5,634 5,634

Investment irKome (loss) 12,109 25 39 12,173 12,173

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 581,137 581,137 581,137

Total Revenue 16,440,792 123,253 97,799 16,661,844 16,661,844

Total Support and Revenue 30,919,714 123,253 102,799 31.145,766 31,145,766

EXPENSES

Program 26,867,345 69,009 65,793 27,002,147 27,002,147

Administration 2,844,901 18,897 13,054 2,876,852 2,876,852

Fundraising 396,505 396,505 396,505

Total Expenses 30,108,751 87,906 78,847 30,275,504 30,275,504

OTHER INCOME

Recoupment of prior write-off • Milford Regional 200,000
-

200,000
- 200,000

Total Other Income 200,000" - 200,000 . 200,000

Change in net assets before depreciation 1,010,963 35,347 23,952 1,070,262 1,070,262

Depreciation and amortization 1,139,644 6,464 11,407 1,157,515 1,157,515

Change In net assets (128,681) 28.883 12,545 (87,253) (87.253)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 6,751,079 26,944 25,397 6,803,420 6,803,420

Net Assets, End of Year S  6,622,398 5 55,827 -S 37,942 5  6,716,167 5  • 5 6,716,167

•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESSFUL LIVING
Harbor Homes, Inc; Healthy at Home, Inc; Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism;

Southern NH HIV/AIDs Task Force

(CURRENT BOARD MEMBER CHARACTERISTICS & AFFILIATIONS)

NAME POSITION OCCUPATION RESIDENCE CATEGORY

Thomas I. Arnold Director Retired - Former City Solicitor,
Manchester, NH

Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Jack Balcom Director Retired BAE Systems
Current Tax Preparer, H&R Block

Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Vijay Bhatt Director Information Technology-
Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

Burlington, MA Business Leader

Richard Carvalho Director Food Service - Franchise Owner,

Dunkin Donuts

Nashua, NH Business Leader

Vincent

Chamberlain

Director Business - FAA Center, Nashua Brookline, NH Business Leader

Philip Duhaime Director Retired - Food Service Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Jared Freilich Treasurer Business - VP Bank of America,
Merrill Lynch

Hampstead, NH Business Leader

Laurie Goguen Asst.

Secretary

Business - Linahan Limousine,

Customer Service

Nashua, NH Civic Leader/Consumer

Joel Jaffe Secretary Retired - Business, Hewlett
Packard

Litch field, NH Civic Leader

Lanna Martin Director Business - BAE Systems Merrimack, NH Business Leader

Edward

McDonough

Director Non-Profit Agency Director -
Gate House Sober Community

Nashua, NFI Civic Leader

Richard Plante Vice Chair Retired - Military Manchester, NH Civic Leader

Daniel Sallet Chair Business - BAE Systems,
VP Finance/Electronic Systems

Ayer, MA Business Leader

Trent Smith Director Retired - Business, HR Milford.NH' Civic Leader

Revised 03/24/20



Henry J. Och

Executive Summary

20 years of healthcare management experience in a Federally Qualified Community Health Center
Experience working with and supporting underserved and refugee populations

Proven and nationally recognized public health leader

Strong background in healthcare expansion projects and project management
Experience with new service design and implementation

Experienced grant writer for federal, state and private programs

Professional Experience

Chief Operations Officer 2020-Present
The Partnership for Successful Living Nashua, NH

I

I  lead the continued transformation of the PSL's delivery model to provide integrated, innovative and evidence-
based client/patient services. I ensure the meeting of outcomes and regulations for various federal, state and
local contracts, government/foundation grants, and audits, as well as overseeing staff. Further duties include:

•  to grow or sustain relevant and compelling programs that are financially viable and aligned with the
PSL's mission, vision and values

■  to implement efficient use of technologies, facilities, and streamlined processes; and to develop and
implement an "outcomes" measurement system

•  In consultation with the CEO, develop and implement operational plans, monitprs progress, and adjusts
plans as is necessary to achieve objectives

■  The COO oversee and integrate the programs/ services and staff within Keystone Hall (all programs and
services). Harbor Homes (all programs and services with the exception of the Facilitating Organization),
and Southern NH HIV AIDS Task Force (all programs and services); as well as the following PSL-wide
administrative departments and staff: IT, HR, and Facilities.

■  I closely with the CEO to support him and represent him as needed in various functions

Chief Operations Officer/Chief Information Officer 2013-2020
Lowell Community Health Center Lowell, MA

Directly supervised a wide array of clinical and administrative departments including primary and specialty care,
health information, information technology.(IT), information systems, centralized call center, patient service
center and facilities management. I am responsible for the development and implementation of strategic
objectives in order to meet the needs of our patients and organizational goals. I have represented the health
center at the local, state and national levels.

■  Designed Lowell CHC's operations management model which was recognized by the US Health
Resources Services Administration as a national best practice

•  Launched a state of the art eye care center with clinical and retail optical services in collaboration with
the New England College of Optometry

■  Launched a new dental clinic comprised of 16 dental exam rooms

■  Led a $26 million clinic expansion project adding 65,000 square feet of clinic space to the health center
•  Led the health center's US Health Resources Services Administration operational requirements

readiness which resulted in a perfect 19/19 site visit compliance score in 2017

(
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Led the organization's Joint Commission readiness efforts which resulted in re-accreditation and Joint

Commission Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) recognition in 2015

Partnered with the Chief Medical Officer to expand services to include specialty care comprised of

podiatry, neurology and dermatology

Implemented process improvements resulting In a 15% reduction in clinic visit cycle times thereby

improving the patient experience

Directly involved in federal, state and private grant development efforts which have brought Lowell CMC
nearly $3 million in grant funding since 2009
Led a $1 million construction project in collaboration with Lowell General Hospital which resulted in
onsite lab, ultrasound, mammography and radiology services

Participated in the implementation of the Wellforce Accountable Care Organization and I am currently

supporting the Lowell Behavioral Health Community Partners program

Participated in donor cultivation and engagement in support of the health center's capital campaign and

annual fund

Coached, mentored and led multidisciplinary personnel and teams to achieve multiple objectives within

the health center's strategic plan

Developed the organization's information technology strategic plan

Chief Information Officer/Director of Operations 2005-2020

Lowell Community Health Center Lowell, MA

Directed the strategic planning and implementation of enterprise systems in support of health center operations

in order to improve cost effectiveness, service quality, and overall patient care. Responsible for all aspects of

the organization's information technology infrastructure and information systems, health information and

facilities management departments. Designated project manager for many cross functional projects.

■  Project manager for the organization's $42 million construction project and expansion effort which
included consolidation of most existing sites as well as the addition of a 340B pharmacy program

■  Project manager for a $1 million clinic expansion initiative to support Lowell CHC's Metta Health Center
■  Project manager for the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services "Meaningful Use" project which has

generated nearly $1 million in incentive payments
■  Collaborated with the Chief of Quality and other clinical leaders to pursue and obtain the National

Committee for Quality Assurance's PCMH Level III recognition

■  Successfully led the organization's electronic health record implementation project

■  Implemented effective patient flow improvements such as a centralized patient call center, streamlined

medical record management processes and patient registration processes

■  Member of the Massachusetts eHealth Institute's Legal and Privacy Workgroup which supported the

development of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' statewide health information exchange (Mass

Hlway)

■  Designated as the organization's HIPAA privacy officer. Information security officer and compliance

officer

Adjunct Professor 2010-2015

University of Massachusetts Lowell, MA

Provide classroom instruction for graduate students in the Health Informatics and Health Management

programs within the University of Massachusetts' College of Health Sciences.

■  Developed and instructed the "Project Management in Healthcare" graduate course

■  Developed and instructed the "Electronic Health Record (EHR) Systems" graduate course
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• Worked with faculty staff and a medical record software vendor to provide a hosted EHR to the
University for instruction purposes

Director of Information Technology , 2003-2005
Information Technology Coordinator 1999-2003
Lowell Community Health Center Lowell, MA

Responsible for the execution of all short- and long-term IT strategies. Managed all facets of day to day
operations for the Information Systems and Information Technology departments.

\

■  Effective project manager for many successful IT projects such as the migration to a new practice
management system, development of a various web-based tracking applications and numerous system
platform upgrades and migrations

■  Trained and managed a qualified team of iTspecialists
■  Authored and implemented all current policies and procedures relevant to information technology and

information security

■  Led the organization's HIPAA Privacy and Security rule compliance efforts

Material Testing Laboratory Coordinator 1997-1999
Joan Automotive Industries / Joan Fabrics Lowell, MA

Applications Developer 1996-1997
HB Fuller Corporation Wilmington, MA

Education

University of Massachusetts at Lowell Expected 2021
Master in Business Administration, concentration Healthcare ^

Harvard University Completed 2006
Master in Liberal Arts in extension studies, concentration in Information Management Systems

University of Massachusetts at Lowell Completed 2000
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, concentration in Management Information Systems

Certifications and Awards

Project Management Professional (PMP) - 2010
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) - 2004
Milken Institute School of Public Health at George Washington University's Emerging Leader Award - 2015
Massachusetts League of Community Health Centers Employee of the Year Award - 2015

Professional Associations

Member - American Public Health Association

Member - American College of Healthcare Executives

Member - International Information System Security Certification Consortium
Member - Project Management Institute

Member - Association of Latino Professionals for America
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Military Experience

Commissioned Infantry officer in the Massachusetts Army National Guard with a current rank of Major. Currently

serving on the Joint Staff of the Joint Force Headquarters. I have been a member of several response teams providing

support to citizens of the Cornmonwealth in six emergency situations.

Overseas Military Deployments:

Operations Officer, iSAF Headquarters, Afghanistan 2014

■  Awarded the Defense Meritorious Service Medal for contributions to the transition of combat

operations from NATO coalition forces to Afghan security forces

■  Awarded the Slovakian Minister of Defense Medal for support efforts to the Slovakian Military

Infantry Platoon Leader, 182"'' infantry Regiment, Kosovo - 2006-2007
■  Awarded the Army Commendation Medal for joint human trafficking interdiction operations with the

Kosovo Police Services

■  Awarded the German Armed Forces Schutzenschnur (Silver) Badge

Board and Volunteer Experience

■  Board Member - Family Services of the Merrimack Valley

■  Board Member - ACT Lawrence, a community development corporation

■  Massachusetts Region 3 Health and Medical Coordinating Coalition Governing Board (Ambulatory Care

Lead)

■  Fortaleza - Advocacy group working on bridging the academic achievement gap for minorities in the

Lowell Public School system

■  Coach for Lowell CHC's staff running group

Other Skills

Fluent in written and spoken Spanish

[References available upon request]
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Ana Pancine. MBA

Nashua, NH

Summary

Results-driven finance executive possessing progressive experience managing finance and
accounting functions. Experienced with financial operations, accounting, reporting, asset,
liability and balance sheet management, forecasting, controls, operational efficiencies, and
financial analysis. -Versatile leader promoting accountability and integrity, dedicated to more
efficient operations through innovation and technology. Implements system and management
strategies to increase transparency, efficiency, and accurate deliverables. Decisive and motivated
change agent actively seeking opportunities to lead positive change with integrity in an
innovative environment.

Professional Experience

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH

Acting Chief Financial Officer

Chief Revenue Officer

November 2007 - Present

March, 2020 - Present

August 2018 - March, 2020

Supervise and manage the Business/Finance Office team composed of 15 staff members,
performing duties such as A/R, A/P, Staff Accountant, Senior Staff Accountant,
Credentialing, Medicare/Medicaid/private/self-pay billing.
Manage the overall strategy and optimization of revenue cycle operations, systems,
policies and procedures to apply an improvement to charges, claims, payments,
collections and A/R, denials, and reporting of results and analysis.

Solicited and successfully developed budget proposals for grant applications securing
governmental funds to support operations and maintaining consistent service delivery.
Responsible for reviewing and negotiating financial terms for federal and state contracts.
Accountable for driving better integration and alignment between all revenue-related
functions. Including creating revenue model development, analysis and changes to maximize
revenue.

Monitor the effectiveness of collection efforts and ensure that insurance billings are current

within the established period specified in the department policy. Manage all other revenue
pipelines of each revenue stream to detennine in advance the level of risk to obtaining
desired goals and what adjustments should ultimately be implemented.
Monitor timeliness and effectiveness of billing department activities, ensuring that
outstanding patient accounts and accounts receivables are no more than the agreed-upon limit
and that bad debt is within the budgeted target.

Manage program revenue by reviewing and tracking all contracts on a monthly basis, and
ensure all funds are fully invoiced/ billed accordingly to flinders by contract/grant deadline.
Work closely with the CFO and other C_suite and executive leaders to continually improve
the alignment of each functional group to support the business development organizational



Ana Pancine. MBA

Nashua, NH

Structure, legal, finance, compensation, hiring and selection criteria, and rewards and
recognition.

• Assist the CFO in managing and implementing financial performance measures that support
the PSL's strategic directions.

• Work closely with each PSL program manager to develop a goal to meet budget
responsibilities to ensure ongoing financial viability for programs.

• Work closely with the Compliance Officer or designee to prepare and revise the fiscal
operations procedures manual and ensure implementation of these.

• Work closely with the Grants and Strategy department to develop new lines of business and
grow existing lines of business. This includes the development of new budgets, forecasting,
and trend analysis.

•  Internal and external reports for State & Federal projects.

•  Provide support to CFO on all special projects; serve as back up for this position.
•  Prepare complex financial statements, internal/annual reports for planning and oversight of

each program within an organization

Various. November 2007 - August 2018

• Assist with budget development for 92 cost centers and 8 affiliated agencies with annual
expenses and revenue over $40m

•  Prepare operational and variance analysis for financial presentations based on GAAP,
organization, State and Federal guidelines.

• Maintain accurate accounts including cash, inventory, prepaid, fixed assets, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and line of credit transactions.

•  Chair of the Greater Nashua Continuum Care (GNCOC) and GNCOC Board of Directors,
composed of representatives from the Federal, State,.and City Governments, housing
program directors, local hospital staff, social services agencies, financial institutions, private
sector, and religious institutions.

•  Established a Safety Committee for the PSL agencies which results in a reduction of $50K in

WC premiums within one year.

•  Developed Safety policies and procedures for and guidance of staff on requirements
established by insurance companies and flinders.

•  Created and established the financial policies and procedure manual for the organization
• Knowledge of planning techniques, testing and sampling methods involved in conducting

audits.

•  Extensive experience with Financial Statements audits, reviews, compilations, and audits for
Governmental organizations (Arl33).

• Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management comments on A-
133 audits.

•  Prepare all budgets for the Development Department to be submitted for competitive State,
Federal and Local grant applications.



Ana Pancine, MBA

Nashua, NH

•  Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy for new and renewed contracts
•  Prepare, review and update all Finance/Accounting policies and procedures to ensure

compliance with new Federal regulations.

Hewlett-Packard Various locations August 2001 - November 2007

Business Analyst Februar>' 2004 - November 2007
Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team contracts on a monthly basis.
Responsible for revenue recognition for two US districts, Latin America and Canada.
Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the department, which
included financial reports, risk reports, contract metric reports.
Responsible for all billing for Latin America and prepared currency translation reporting.
Managed ten cost centers with annual expenses of $9m and revenue of SI 8m.
Variance reporting monthly for +/-1 % of forecasted to report to senior management.
Maintained global reporting of 200 employees with emphasis on geographic alignment,
individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utilization and resource mapping
Main contact for all customers and service providers located in the Latin America territory.

Provided Financial Support for account closing.

Quality Controller/ System Support Admin June 2003 — February 2004
Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.

Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting, geography reports
Maintain all employee-related spreadsheets updated.

Managed quality review reports ensuring policies and procedures are being followed.
Mentored new hires and provided support for team members with problem-solving.

'er Event Administrator August 2001 — June 2003

Responsible for billing revenue.

Maintenance of contracts, including service charges and billing.

Data Entry

Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.
Assistance and service provided for all customer located in the Latin
America/Caribbean/Europe territory

Education

Southern NH University 2015 -2017
MBA, graduated with Honors
Major: Finance

Hcsscr College 2001 -2005



Ana Pancine. MBA

Nashua, NH

BS, Magna Com Laude (CPA: 3.9/4.0)
Majors: Finance .
Minor: Accounting

Other Skills

Trained Medical Interpreter: Portuguese & Spanish 2010
Trained Translator: Portuguese

Skilled USCIS Interpreter

Computer: Windows, Microsoft Office, SIFT — Financial Database, Fundware/F9
Finance related: PEARS/CHAMPAVFM, NCAS/SAP, ABILA - MIP
Language: Fluent Portuguese, Proficient Spanish



James G. Cline Sr.
WORK EXPERIENCE

Program Manager - Mobile Crisis Response Team
Harbor Homes - Nashua, NH - August 2019 - Present

•  Responsible for supervising licensed professionals and peer support staff assisting the program coordinator to provide assessment, crisis
intervention and brief treatment services to a diverse population of clients in the community. Provide appropriate recommendations for care
and linkage services for clients requiring on-going treatment.

•  Works under the supervision of and reports regularly to the Chief Operational Officer and monitors the quality of services delivered to client.
•  Builds collaborative relationships with local hospitals, police fire departments, and community service agencies.
•  Ensures that employees are properly trained and effectively carrying out the duties of their positions and provides constructive feedback

and coaching to employees

•  Interviewing, screening, and hiring qualified professional staff, making presentations at various professional schools to recruit new staff.

Assistant Program Manager-Transitional Housing Program
Harbor Homes - Nashua, NH - September 2018 - August 2019

•  Assist managing the New Hampshire Hospital Transitional Housing Program, filling for the Program Manager when needed, taking calls off
duty, making sure all state and federal regulations are followed, and all staff are properly trained with documentation.

•  Conduct program audits to ensure all policies/procedures/regulations are followed including treatment plans, case management,
medications, etc.

•  Make sure all individuals in the program get integrated back into the community, get to experience what different communities offer, follow
up with case managers to make sure all applications for housing and benefits are completed, work with other agencies, assist the Program.
Manager as needed.

Lead Peer Support Specialist — Mobile Crisis Response Team
Harbor Homes - Nashua, NH - October 2017 - September 2018

• Assist in covering the 24 hour Crisis Line and assist with screenings of persons with co-occurring mental health issues who present in crisis to
determine necessity for further assessment and appropriate referrals, assisting participants (consumers and their families) in resolving crisis
issues and gaining access to needed community resources, and helping them overcome barriers and bridge gaps between their needs and
available resources.

• Making appropriate referrals, assisting participants (clients and their families) in resolving aisis issues, assisting clients in articulating their goals
for recovery, assist clients learn and practice new skills, helping them monitor their progress, supporting them in their treatment, modeling effective
coping techniques, self-help strategies or interventions, supporting them in advocating for themselves to obtain effective services.

• In conjunction with the Clinical Director, overseeing the training of peer support and other staff in related skills, and provide additional training in
such areas as policies, procedures, and regulations.

Case Manager-SAMHSA Program ^
Harbor Homes - Nashua, NH - March 2017 - September 2017

• Complete initial intakes, 6 months and 12 months follow up assessments, and discharges for people that are homeless veterans/non-veterans
and may suffer from substance use and/or mental Illness.

• Provide employment services to include resumes, cover letters, job searches according to preferences/skills, contacting employers, interviewing
skills reviews, and support as need after getting a job.

• Work with Individuals to apply/receive/maintain needed benefits/services with outside agencies like the VA, DHHS, Adult Learning Center, Easter
Seals, etc, creating, building and maintaining relationships within and outside of the agency through outreach and presentations.

CBFS Program Director Coop Housing Andover MIMI
VINFEN - Cambridge, MA - November 2015 - March 2017

• Manage the day-to-day operations of a medically intensive mental illness residential group home in Andover for individuals including scheduling,
certifications, trainings, medical treatments, and medications.

•Complete all reports and paperwork on time I.E. Individualized Action Plans (lAP), quarterlies, Adult Comprehensive Assessments, Incident
reports.

• Building and maintaining relationships within and outside of the agency including families, guardians, and state workers. Ensure that all federal,
state, and company policies and procedures are being followed.

• Interviewing, screening, and hiring qualified professional staff to fill all levels (entry level to PhD level.), making presentations at various professional
schools and businesses to recruit new staff.

Prograni Director Munroe St, Developmental Services VINFEN - Cambridge, MA - December 2014
to November 2015

• Manage the daily operations of a developmental services residential group home in Roxbury. stay within set budgets for food, supplies, staffing.
• Complete all reports and paperwork on time I.E. ISP (Individual Support Plan), HCSIS (state reports), and company requirements.
• Building and maintaining relationships within and outside of the agency including families, guardians, and state workers.
• Making sure that each individual's ISP objective(s) are being done and documented, ensure that all federal, state, and company policies and
procedures are being followed.



House Manager
GRANITE BAY CARE. INC.- Portland, ME - February 2013 to November 2014

• Lived with individuals and managed a staff of 3-6 people.

• Helped integrate individuals with developmental disabilities into the community and reachlheir goals, ensured that aspects of each individual's
person center plans (POPs) were being implemented.

• Built and maintained relationships within and outside of the agency including families, guardians, and state workers, work week was 112 plus
hours.

Sales and Leasing Consultant
PRIME TOYOTA SCION SACO - Saco, ME - February 2012 to February 2013

• Quickly learned Toyota's vehicle line and their sales process and procedures, honest and straight forward with customers while identifying their
purchasing needs.

Political/Cultural Advisor, Intel, Information Operations Officer
MAINE'ARMY NATIONAL GUARD - Brewer, ME - June 2009 to May 2012

• Filled in for the commanding officer regarding communications and decisions with elders and civilians.
• Negotiated peace talks with local insurgent leaders.
• Used MS Office suite to produce reports for use on missions, over the radio, and for higher authorities.
• Completed building projects such as schools, bridges, and wells with Afghan and US government agencies.
• Started and managed third most popular radio station in Afghanistan.

College Recruiter
MAINE ARMY NATIONAL GUARD - Portland, ME - June 2008 to September 2009

• Built strong relationships with local colleges which led to assisting in classes (Accounting/Criminal Justice), conducted in-depth background checks
on potential applicants according to strict regulations and guidelines, supervised 40 - 60 soldiers/potential .soldiers in the recruit sustainment
program, made mission the first year.

Department Supervisor/Estimator
PRESCOTT METALS - Biddeford, ME - May 2007 to May 2008

• Quickly promoted to supervisor of the Power Coating department and then to Estimator/Sales, oversaw a team of 5 - 8 employees over two shifts.
• Found efficient ways to improve products in accordance with company and safety guidelines.

Service Technician/Supervisor
PACE GENEfRATOR - Shapleigh, ME - May 2003 to May 2007

• Developed a cost effective service route plan that cut fuel costs and maximized seivice time, generated new business and maintained existing
accounts, conducted background checks on all potential employees as well as trained them once hired.

Patrolman
WAKEFIELD POLICE DEPARTMENT-Wakefield, NH - October 1999 to December 2002

• Completed both the part-time and full time police academies, helped at local driver's education school as well as local schools using unique teaching
aids, completed a multitude of duties including traffic stops, DWIs, report writing, working with members of the community, criminal investigations,
created forms and packets to help officers on patrols become more efficient.

Supervisor/Night Plant Manager
FACEMATE CORPORATION - Chicopee, MA - June 1996 to October 1999

• Managed 45+ employees in a textile manufacturing environment, worked with sales department to sell finished product to such companies as Levi,
Wrangler, and Faded Glory, set up machines for each shift, and shut down the plant at night.

President Clinton, and various Generals, Admirals, US Senators, and US Representatives
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS - Thurmont, MD - May 1992 to May 1996

Thurmont, MD/Washington, DC/Camp Lejeune, NO

Camp David - Presidential Guard, Infantry 05/1992 - 05/1996

• Only Marine out of 1800 screened to be selected as a Presidential Guard at Camp David (Yankee White Program), provided security for President
Bush, President Clinton, and various Generals, Admirals, US Senators, and US Representatives.

• Maintained a Cat 1 security clearance, same as Secret Service, allowed access to the President with loaded weapons.
• Trained with the CIA, NIS, Secret Service, Navy Seals, and DC Metro Police while at Camp David, awards include Presidential Service Badge
(#14574) and Good Conduct Medal.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science in Accounting
HESSER COLLEGE - Portsmouth, NH June 2006

Associates in Criminal Justice

HESSER COLLEGE - Portsmouth, NH June 200



MICHAEL N. ZECHMAN. J.D.

EXECUTIVE PROFILE

Healthcare professional with strong leadership skills and 15+ years of well-rounded experience in legal,
compliance, privacy, risk management, audit, and operations. Experienced hands-on leader who builds

and retains high performance teams by hiring, developing, and motivating skilled professionals;
producing consistently innovative and measurable outcomes. Skilled investigator and strategic problem-
solver with a reputation for outstanding judgment and the ability to work across all levels of an
organization. Organized self-motivator who has consistently led high priority initiatives to completion
and has earned successive promotions with increasing levels of responsibility through a proven record of
achievement.

EXPERIENCE

Partnership for Successful Living • Nashua, New Hampshire

Compliance & Risk Management Officer. (April 2018 - Present)

•  Provides oversight of compliance and risk management program for the 4 entities that

comprise the Partnership including: Harbor Homes, Inc. (including a Federally
Qualified Health Center), Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone Hall),
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Taskforce, and Healthy at Home

•  Oversees efforts to detect and prevent fraud, waste and abuse, including operating the
organizational Medicaid audit program

•  Oversees grant compliance committee and processes

•  Manages privacy program including matters relating to HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2

•  Manages risk management efforts including chairing the Safety Committee and
managing insurance relationships

•  Investigates all client complaints

Hope Community Resources, Inc. • Anchorage, Alaska

Business Management Consultant - Independent Contractor. (June 2017 - May 2018)

Hope Community Resources, Inc. • Anchorage, Alaska

General Counsel & Senior Deputy Director. (July 2013 - June 2017)
General Counsel & Deputy Director. (July 2005 - July 20131

Compliance Officer. (Febmary 2004 - July 2005)

•  Served as General Counsel and senior manager for healthcare entity with a $65,000,000+

annual budget, 1,000+ employees, and 8.regional offices.

Provided or supervised all aspects of legal representation for the organization.
Served as key member of the senior leadership team, with extensive operations oversight
duties, reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

Oversaw all aspects of compliance, audit, privacy, and risk management efforts, including
facilitating all cross-functional and risk management committees.

Successfully led organization through external audits, inquiries, and investigations; including
managing corrective action plans.

Conducted or oversaw internal investigations, including, but not limited to HIPAA privacy.
Fraud, Waste, Abuse, and personnel matters.

Oversaw multiple departments, including Audit & Compliance; Licensing & Certification;
Health Infomialion Management; Case Management; Family Outreach, Education, and



Support; and multiple operations teams.
•  Successfully directed the organization's first time accreditation effort through Council on

Accreditation (COA).

•  Furnished,legal advice and counsel to executive management and senior leadership.
•  Researched and analyzed legal and regulatory issues affecting the organization.
•  Negotiated and maintained all contracts and leases.
• Worked extensively with Medicaid law within State/Federal regulatory framework.
•  Provided privacy subject matter expertise on an array of topics and projects.
•  Delivered presentations and training on a variety of legal, compliance, privacy, and risk

management issues to leadership, the workforce, and the board of directors.
•  Created, updated, and maintained policies, procedures, and guidelines to ensure ongoing

compliance with all applicable State and Federal statutes and regulations.
•  As the organization's HIPAA Privacy Officer; created, implemented, and oversaw the

privacy program to ensure compliance with all Federal and State Regulations.
•  Created and led organizational compliance plan ensuring that the organization

and its employees maintained compliance with all aspects of statutory and
regulatory requirements, including State and Federal Medicaid law, labor and

,  employment law, EEC law, Hil'AA privacy rules, and the ADA.
•  Designed, implemented, and supervised a comprehensive Medical Records Management

department and facility.

Disability Law Center.of Alaska • Anchorage, Alaska
Attorney. (July 2001 ~ February 2004)

•. Provided legal representation for individuals with disability related legal matters.
•  Represented clients in State/Federal court, administrative hearings, and negotiations.
•  Provided legal consultation and technical assistance for clients and members of

the healthcare provider community, including presentations and public trainings.
•  Areas of concentration included Medicaid, employment discrimination, Social

Security Disability, and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance.

Gcncx Services, Inc. • Wayne, Pennsylvania
Attorney. (September 1998 - June 2001)
•  Represented long tenn disability insurance policy-holders in claims for Social Security

Disability benefits, appearing in over 300 administrative law hearings.
•  Researched and drafted numerous briefs, arguments, and motions for submission

to Federal administrative law judges and the Appeals Council.

EDUCATION

Wayland Baptist Univcrsit>' Certificate awarded July 2015
Anchorage, Alaska

Leadership Certificate in Business Management - 12 graduate credits

Widcner Universit>' School of Law Juris Doctor awarded May 1998
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Honors:* Certificate of Achievement: Public Sector Labor Law

Millersville University B.A. awarded May 1994
Millersville, Pennsylvania

Major: • Political Science

Admitted to Alaska Bar



PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LTCSW

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

Telephone: (603) 882-3616
Fax: (603)595-7414

E-mail: p.kelleher@nhpaitnershiD.org

PROFESSIONA.L EXPERIENCE

2006-Prescnt President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force

2002-Present President & CEO, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc./ Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH

1997-Present President & CEO, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH
1995-Present President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., Milford, NH
1995-Prcsent President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
1982-Prcsent President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as chief executive officer of six nonprofit corporations (Partnership, for Successful
Living) creating and providing residential and supportive ser\'ices, mental health care, primary/preventive
health care, substance use disorder treatment and prevention ser\'ices, supported employment and
workforce development, professional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homeless, living with disabilities, and/or are underserved/members of vulnerable populations. Responsible
for initiation, development, and oversight of more than 80 programs comprising a $22,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development resulting in more than $15,000,000 in grants annually; oversight of 350+
management and direct care professionals.

2003-2006 Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health

organizations.

1980 - 1982 Real Estate Broker, LcVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

1979 - 1980 Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA

Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 individuals with
mental and/or developmental disabilities. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20
residential coordinators. Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs.
Provided emergency consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group
homes and one sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management,
quality assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

1978- 1979 Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department.

1977 - 1979 Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center H, a unit of

Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA

Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

1976 Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Paticnt Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

1971 - 1976 Program Counselor/Super^'isor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wcllcsley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling^of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



2

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975 - 1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971 - 1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker - Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers -NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts
\

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW

PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977 Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatiy, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

I

1975 - 1976 Massachusetts Institute of Teclmology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 - 1984 Anlioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1990-1991 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1978 - 1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

■  High School Valedictorian Award
■  National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
■  University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
■  NAM I NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change
■  Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007
■  The Waiter J. Dunfey Corporate Fund Award for Excellence in Non Profit Management 2009
■  NH Magazine Business Excellence Award 2010
■  Nashua Telegraph Humanitarian of the Year Award 2015
■  Lionel W. Joluison Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015

MEMBERSHIPS

Member of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committee on Homeless Veterans
Board Member, Community Health Access Network (CHAN)

National Association of Social Workers

Fonner member of the National Healthcare for the Homeless Board of Directors

Former Chair, Governor's State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care

Former Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH



HARBOR HOMES, INC.
FY 2021

MCRT Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $186,512 1% $1,865

Henry Och Chief Operating Officer $207,500 1% $2,075

Ana Pancine Chief Revenue Officer $145,000 ■ 1% $1,450

Michael Zechman Compliance Officer $115,000 1% $1,150

James Cline Program Manager $62,000 100% $62,000



JelTrey A. Meyerj
Coramiisiontr

Kitja S. Fox
Director

OCT08'19mill:08 DflS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISIOI^ FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 l-«00-a52.3345 ExL 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TOD Access: l-SOO-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 8. 2019

/

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord,. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health to
exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., (Vendor # 155358), 45 High
Street, Nashua, NH 03060, to continue providing Mobile Crisis Services and Supports by increasing the
price limitation by $1,075,742, from $3,315,097 to $4,390,839 and by extending the completion date from
October 31. 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017,
(Item #14A) and amended on June 26. 2019, (Item #20).

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2020,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-092-920010-5945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV . DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92005945 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Subtotal $250,000 $0 $250,000

05-95-092-922010-4117HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV , BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $1,313,613 $0 $1,313,613

2019
102- .

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $1,313,613 $0 $1,313,613
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Contracts for

Prog Svc
102-

500731
2020 92204117

Subtotal;

Total:

$437,871

$3,065,097

$3,315,097

$1,075,742

$1,075,742

$1,075,742

$1,513,613

$4,140,839

$4,390,839

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Mobile Crisis Response Team and beds for
individuals eighteen (18) years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis, including those with
a co-occurring substance use disorders in the Nashua area.

Each month, the Vendor services approximately 180 unique individuals through mobile crisis
outreach services, phone support, referrals, and crisis apartments, which results in approximately 342
hospital diversions each month.

The original agreement includes language in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions.
Parapgraph 3. that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the
continued, availability of funding, satisfactory performance of services, parties' written authorization and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is irequesting to renew services
for eight (8) months of the one (1) year and eight (8) months available at this time.

The vendor will continue to provide mobile crisis stabilization services 24 hours a day. 7 days a
week, a central phone triage system where trained clinicians complete an initial risk assessment and
appropriate referrals, and two (2), two-bedroom apartments that provide an alternative to hospitalization
and/or institutionalization. The vendor will collaborate and coordinate with law enforcement where
appropriate. Additionally, the vendor will have the ability to respond to requests for crisis assessments
and interventions within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of services. Once the vendor is
involved with a case, services and supports can be provided for up to seven (7) days following the onset
of the crisis to ensure individuals remain stable and in the community.. The Bureau of Mental Health
Services seeks to promote full community inclusion for adults (18 years or older) who have severe mental
illness, severe and persistent mental illness or who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a
high emphasis on supporting individuals in their community with a broad range of supports and services
that reduce the need, for inpatient care.

As part of New Hampshire's Implementation of the Community Mental Health Agreement
(Amanda D. Settlement), the Bureau of Mental Health Services has implemented the Mobile Crisis
Services and Supports contract for the provision of four (4). community crisis apartments, a mobile crisis
team and timely accessible services and supports to individuals eighteen (18) years and older
experiencing a mental health crisis in NH Community Mental Health Region Vl.

Harbor Homes. Inc. effectiveness to deliver services will be measured through annual
programmatic audits, ongoing financial audits, and monitoring of the following performance measures:

•  Response time between referral and community-based service delivery;
•  Ratio of services delivered in the community versus phone/office based services;
•  Number of seivices provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization including referrals

made for ongoing support and care;
•  Prevalence of lethality assessments conducted to establish baseline need and formulate crisis

and discharge plans;
•. Service outcomes (i.e. if hospitalization was avoided).
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The Agreement includes requirements for the Vendor to submit ongoing financial
reports. Financial reports will include program-level and organization-level profit and loss statements,
cash equivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending: The Department will review these reports and
discuss any concerns with the Vendor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close monitoring
of fiscal integrity.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the State of New Hampshire
would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the lawsuit of Amanda D.
vs. Governor Hassan. Additionally, individuals experiencing a mental health crisis could be placed in
hospitals or long-term facilities which could result In higher costs to the State.

Area served: Community Mental Health Region VI Brookline, Hollis, Hudson, Litchfield, Mason,
Merrimack, Milford, Mount Vernon. Nashua.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

Respectfully submitted.

teyers

Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

This 2'*' Amendment to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6 contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeastern
Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on April 19, 2017. (Item #14A) and amended on June 26. 2019, (Item #20) the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services Ijased upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to the
General Provisions Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #2 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follo\vs:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Bjlock 1.7,.Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,390,839. \

3. Revise Section 9, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity only, of Exhibit A, Amendment #1. Scope of
Services, by replacing it in its entirety with the following:

9. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

9.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement (total
organization and program-level), and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor.
Program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all
related expenditures for that program. The program-level Profit and Loss Statement
shall include a budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Outside of the
program-level Profit and Loss Statement and budget to actual analysis, all other
statements shall be reflective of the entire Partnership for Successful Living
organization and shall be submitted on the same day the reports are submitted to the
Board, but no later than the fourth Wednesday of the month. Additionally, the contractor
will provide Interim profit and loss statements for every program area, reported as of
the 20*^ of the month, by the last day of every month. The Contractor will be evaluated
on the following:

9.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

Hsrbor Homes Inc. f Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.^. . .
RFP-2017-DBH-04-MOB1LE-01-A02 Page 1 o( 6 Date /Cjfjfl1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

9.1.1.1. Oeftnition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

9.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
Investments divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal
payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used atove must mature
within three (3) months and should not include common
stock. Any amount of cash from a line of credit should be
broken out separately.

9.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

9.1.2. Current Ratio:

9.1.2.1. Definition: A measure pfthe Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

9.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

9.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

9.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

9.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

9.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

9.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

9.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

9.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
' minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

9.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

9.1:4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's
ability to cover its liabilities.

9.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
assets.

9.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment «2 Contractorlnltlals^
RFP-2017.DBH-04-MOBILE-01 -A02

.menomeni oomliuowi f .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

9.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

9.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Conlraclor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

9.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

9.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and
amount outstanding for each line.

9.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

9.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-
compliance with any loan covenant or agreerhent.

9.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

9.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

9.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months, or

9.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe. then

9.3. The Department may:

9.3.1. Require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to explain the
reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

9.3.2. Require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive corrective action plan
within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 9.2.1 and/or 9-2.2 have
not been met.

9.3.3. Terminate the contract.

9.3.3.1. If a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall
update the corrective action plan at least every thirty (30)
calendar days until compliance is achieved.

9.3.3.2. The. Contractor shall provide additional Information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the
Department. The Contractor shall provide -requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

9.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to
have a material financial impact on and/or materially impact or impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

9.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all
other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and include
the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or
resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment tt2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

9.6. The Contractor shall Inform the Department by phone and by email within five business
days when any Executive Management, Board Officers, or Program Managers for
DHHS contracts submits a resignation or leaves for any other reason.

4. Delete Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, in its entirety and replace Exhibit B-4.
Amendment #2. Budget Sheet.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date
loj~7lh

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

KatjaJame;

Title: Director

Date

Hartwr Homes Inc.

u

Tille:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of County of on 7 Qch 2r>i^ . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

'Name and,Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

r < : -r My. Corhfriis^on Expires:
c. . • V ' • . ̂  r •

f'7-y

ViV ■

WTLUAMC. MARTIN
Jurtoe qf the Poaee ■ New MaHipahIre
My Commission Evplros November A 2020

Herbor Homes. Inc.

RFP-2017-DBH-04-MOBILE-01-A02

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/y?//y
Date ' Narn^ /^/K/os

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Hartx)r Homes. Inc. Amendmeni U2

RFP.2017-DBH-04-M08ILE-01-A02 Page 6 of 6
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 |.«00-852-3345 EiL 9544

Fax: 603-271-4333 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.Dh.gov

June 3. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with Hart>or Homes, Inc.. (Vendor #
155358). 45 High Street. Nashua. NH 03060. to provide Mobile Crisis Services and Supports by
increasing the price limitation by $437,871 from $2,877,226 to $3,315,097 and by extending the
completion date from June 30. 2019 to October 31.2019, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council
approval. 100% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Govemor and Executive Council on April 19. 2017,
(ltem#14A)

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2020 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-092-920010-5945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfVIAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV , DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current.

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92005945 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Subtotal $250,000 $0 $250,000
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05-95-092-922010-4117HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. DIV , BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for •

Prog Svc
92204117 $1,313,613 $0 $1,313,613

2019
102-
500731

Contracts for
Prog Svc

92204117 $1,313,613 $0 $1,313,613

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $0 $437,871 $437,871

Subtotal: $2,627,226 $437,871 $3,085,097

Total: $2,877,226 $437,871 $3,315,097

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Mobile Crisis Response Team and beds for
individuals eighteen (18) years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis including those with
a co-occurring substance use disorders in Mental Health Region VI, which includes Brookline. Hollis.
Hudson. Litchfield, Mason, Merrimack. Milford, Mount Vemon, and Nashua.

Each month, the contractor serves approximately 180 unique individuals through rnobile crisis
outreach serviceSi phone support, referrals, and crisis apartments, which results in approximately 342
hospital diversions each month.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3 that allows the Department
to renew the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written aulhorizaiion and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for three (3) months of the two (2) years
at this time.

The Contractor will continue to provide mobile crisis stabilization services 24 hours a day. 7 days
a week, a central phone triage system where trained clinicians complete an initial risk assessment and
appropriate referrals, and two (2), two-bedroom mobile crisis apartments that, provide an alternative to
hospitalization and/or institutionalization. The contractor will collaborate and coordinate with law
enforcement where appropriate.^ Additionally, the contractor will^have the ability to respond to requests
for crisis assessments and interventions within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of services.
Once the contractor is involved with a case, services and supports can be provided for up to seven (7)
days (ollovring the onset of the crisis to ensure individuals remain stable and in the community.

. The Bureau of Mental Health Services seeks to promote full community inclusion for adults (18
years or older) who have severe mental illness, severe and persistent mental illness or who are severely
mentally disabled. The State places a high emphasis on supporting individuals in their community with
a broad range of supports and services that reduce the need for inpatient care.

As part of New Hampshire's implementation of the Community Mental Health Agreement
(Amanda D. Settlement), the Bureau of Mental Health Services has implemented the Mobile Crisis
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Services and Supports contract for the provision of four (4). community crisis apartments, with
no more than one (1) bed per apartment, a mobile crisis team and timely accessible services and supports
to individuals eighteen (18) years and older experiencing a mental health crisis in NH Community Menta!
Health Region VI.

Harbor Homes. Inc. effectiveness to deliver services will be measured through annual
programmatic audits, ongoing financial audits, and monitoring of the following performance measures:

•  Response time between referral and community-based service delivery;
•  Ratio of services delivered in the community versus phone/office based services;
•  Number of services provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization Including referrals

made for ongoing support and care;

•  Prevalence of lethality assessments conducted to establish baseline need and formulate crisis
and discharge plans;

•  Service outcomes (i.e. if hospitalization was avoided).

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the State of New
Hampshire would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the lavreuit of
Amanda D. vs. Governor Hassan, and individuals experiencing a mental health crisis could be placed in
hospitals or long-term facilities which could result in higher costs to the State.

Area served: Community Mental Health Region VI Brookline. Hollls. Hudson. Utchfield. Mason.
Merriniack, Milford, Mount Vernon. Nashua.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

^spectfully submitted.

Jwfrey A. ̂frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Ocporimcnl of Health ot\d Human Servicu' Mission is to join comnuiniliet and families
in providing opportunities for cUisens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services -
Amendment #1 to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

This 1*^ Amendment to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6 contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1*) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State' or "Department") and Harbor Homes, (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 45 High Street. Nashua. NH
03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 19, 2017, (Item #14A). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, paymerit
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the
contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of servlces"tb support continued delivery of these services; a^rid •

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

October 31. 2019.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$3,315,097.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director^

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read;"

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A in its entirety and add Exhibit A. Amendment #1.

6. Add,Exhibit B-4, Budget form.

7. Add Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Hartw Homes
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobilo Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

This smendment shaQ be effectiye upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date wriRen below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health end Human Services

Date Name: Katjs S. Fox
TlUe: Director

Date

Hart>Of Homes

Name: Pc-Vcr
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of . County of on . before the undersigned
personally appeared'^ person Identified dtrectfy eboi^. or satisf&ctoAly proven to be the person whose ns
signed above, and ackno^edged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above. •

officer,
name is

tic or Justice of the Peace

ibHoM ilahiyh

Signatun

tA r-y
Name and Title of/notary or Justice of the Pea

My Commission Expires: _

WENDY LeBLAKC, Notary Pubflc
My Commission Explree January 23,2024

Harbor Homes
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobllo Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

The preceding Amendment, havir^ been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNev GENERAL

Date
TtOe:

Thereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and ExecuUve Council of the Stete
of New IHempshire at the Meeting on: (dole of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

• Date Name:

Tttle:

HortxK Home*
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Now Hampshire Doportmont of Hoalth and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Servtcos and Supports - Region 6

^hlblt A. Amendment 01

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficier>cy to ensure meaningful
access to their programs an^or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve comptiance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30. 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature end funds encumt>ered for the
SFY 2018-2019 blennia.

1.4. Beginning on or l)efore July 1. 2017. the Contractor shall provide Mobile Crisis Services
and supports, as specified in Section 2. In the New Hampshire Community Mental
Health Region VI (Amherst, Brookline, Hollis. Hudson. Litchfield, Mason. Merrimack.
Milford, Mont Vemon. and Nashua) lo individuals eighteen (18) years and older who
are ex^riencing a mental health crisis.

2. Services to Be Provided

2.1. Mobile Crisis Team

2.1.1. Beginning on or before July 1. 2017, the Contractor shall provide a
designated central phone triage system and a qualified Mobile Crisis team to
provide crisis services. The central phone triage system and crisis services
shall be available twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven days per week: The
services shall include at minimum but not be limited to:

2.1.1.1. A central phone triage system answered by a Master's-level
clinician. Telephone triages shall include but are not limited to initial
telephone calls completed by the clinician to complete the initial risk
assessments to determine the level of service that will be provided

to the caller. The Contractor shall refer callers to the emergency

department/emergency room when the assessnnent determines the
individual requires an emergency medical assessment and
treatment in addition to psychiatric services;

2.1.1.2. Telephone coaching provided by a Master's-level clinician and/or
certifted peer specialist in order to provide supportive listening,
program solving and referrals, as appropriate;

2.1.1.3. Providing community-based face-to-face assessment and
Interverition for persons experiencing a mental hearth crisis, in order

to de-escalate the crisis without removing the Individual from his or

Hoftx>r Homes ExNbil A.Amondmeni01 Contmctor InltJals
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Now Hampohiro Department of Heafth and Human Services
MobDo Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

her home and/or community programs, consistent with safety

protocols;

2.1.1.3.1. The Mobile Crisis team response to an individual in

crisis shall occur primarily in or at the individuals' home
or other natural environments, but may occur in other

locations as may be needed for the crisis, including but
not limited to:

2.1.1.3.1.1. Community settings;

2.1.1.3.1.2. Outpatient mental health settings;

2.1.1.3.1.3. Crisis apartments; and

2.1.1.3.1.4. Police stations.

2.1.1.4. The Mobile Crisis team shall:

2.1.1.4.1. Promptly assess individual needs;

2.1.1.4.2. Identify the services and supports that are necessary to
meet the individual's needs;

2.1.1.4.3. Assist the individual with accessing those services and
supports in a timely manner, either in-person or by

telephone;

2.1.1.4.4. Prpylde interventions to avoid unnecessary

hospitalization. incarceration, or admission to a

Designated Receiving Facility. Acute Psychiatric

Residential Treatment Program, emergency room, or
nursing home;

2.1.1.4.5. Work to stabilize Individuals as quickly as practicable

and assist them in returning to their pre-crisis level of

functioning;

2.1.1.4.6. Work and coordinate with law enforcement personnel

to respond to individuals in mental health crisis in

situations Involving law enforcement contact;

2.1.1.4.7. Involve peer speciallstfs) in providing crisis services

and supports;

2.1.1.4.6. Provide up to seven (7) days of services and supports,

follo.wing the onset of the crisis; and

2.1.1.4.9. Providei at the Vendor's discretion, services and

supports to individuals beyond the immediate crisis

period.

H«rtxtr Homn Exhibit A, Amendment XI Cont/Bctor InUisle
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

2.1.1.4.10. When appropriate, the Mobile Crisis Team shall

conduct lethality assessments that are completed.by a.

Master's-level clinician during an intensive face-to-face
assessment which includes, but is not limited to:

2.1.1.4.10.1. Obtaining the individuars history,

'  Including but not limited to. identifying
problems in narrative form of how

and why the person is presenting at

this time:

2.1.1.4.10.2. • Listing Immediate safety concerns

from the point of view of the individual

in crisis, referring parties and other

collateral sources;

2.1.1.4.10.3. Listing of crisis predpitants. available
internal and external supports;

2.1.1.4.10.4. Listing of relevant past symptoms,

treatments, and medical & substance

co-morbidities.

2.1.1.4.10.5. Narrative of current functional status.

2.1.1.4.10.6. Narrative of current mental status

exam with serial assessment over

time and In response to Immediate

'  treatment interventions.

2.1.1.4.10.7. Creating a disposition/crisis plan.

2.1.1.5. The Mobile Crisis Team's peer support specialist shall provide

services in a synergistic fashion with strong partnerships among

members of the crisis team In order to offer

2.1.1.5.1. Specialized recovery promoting activities;

2.1.1.5.2. Supportive counseling;

2.1.1.5.3. Supportive listening;

2.1.1.5.4. Identification of potential community based resources

available to individuals; and

2.1:1.5.5. Practical problem solving around life stressors.

2.1.1.6. The Mobile Crisis team shall have the ability lo respond to an

individual's needs onsite. typically within one (1) hour of the request
for crisis services, within Mental Health Region VI. recognizing that

Hsrtxv Homes Erhlbft A. Amendment 01 Contractor inltiels
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit A, Amendment 01

occasionally, reaching individuals in more distant, rural areas of the
region may take more than one hour.

2.1.1.7. The Mobile Crisis Team shad provide, as appropriate to meet the

needs of the individual served, crisis stabilization services that shall

Include but are not limited to:

2.1.1.7.1. Case management services that include expedited
referrals and linkages to community based services
through partnerships in a behavioraliy integrated
manner. This shall include, for those Individuals

agreeable, connecting the individual with the.

appropriate Community Mental Health Center.

2.1.1.7.2. For individuals participating in an Assertive Community
Treatment (ACT) Team vrfthin a Community Mental

Health Center (CMHC), the" Mobile Crisis Team shall

contact the ACT Team upon identifying the indivlduars

participation: The Mobile Crisis Team shall work with

the ACT Team to collaborate and coordinate the

services needed to stabilize the individual and
\

transition the individual back into the community and

the ACT Team's oversight as soon as practicable.

2.1.1.7.3. Therapeutic services based on best practices and
eviderK^e Informed approaches.

2.1.1.7.4. Substance Use Disorders: for individuals identihed by

the Mobile Crisis Team as having a substance use

disorder, the Team shall coordinate Immediate

substance use disorder treatment needs with the

individual's current substance use disorder provider,

with the Contractor's substance use disorder

professionals, or with other appropriate substance use
disorder professionals as may be needed to assist the

individual with stabilization.

2.1.1.7.5. For individuals that are in en emerger>cy department
but for whom the Mobile Crisis Team has been notiTied

is in r>eed of crisis stabilization, the Mobile Crisis Team

shall endeavor to provide services to the individual,
including appropriate treatment.

2.1.1.7.5.1. The Contractor shall develop

agreements or memorandums of
understanding with the emergency

departments in Region 6 to support

HftftorHoa>«3 Exhibit A. Amendment 01 Contractor InlUalt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A, Amendnnent 01

the Contractor's obligation to serve

.  ... such individuals within an emergency.

department. On or before July 1,

2017, the Contractor shall sut>mit

such agreements to the DHHS

designee.

2.1.1.7.6. Supports that emphasizes psycho-education,

empowerment, partnership and the right to self-

determination for Individuals challenged by mental

illness and recovery;

2.1.1.7.7. Admissions to a Community Crisis Apartrrient.

referenced In Section 2.2. While an indtvidual is

admitted into a community crisis apartment, the Mot>iie

Crisis Team shall provide brief and continuous

psychiatric Intervention within this setting to maximize

respite and support while minimizing the need for

inpatient hospitalization. The Contractor shall ensure

that:

2.1.1.7.7.1. Ongoing safety assessments are

conducted;

2.1.1.7.7.2. Supervision and serial evaluation of

mental status are continuous;

2.1.1.7.7.3. There Is a focus on individual coplrig

strengths In order to develop a

recovery plan;

2.1.1.7.7.4. Medication evaluations are

conducted;

2.1.1.7.7.5. Individual supportive therapy is

available; and

2.1.1.7.7.6. Referrals for psychiatric, social

services, substance use and medical

aftercare are coordinated.

2.1.1.7.8. Emergency psychophanmacology interventions

provided vrithin twenty-four (24) hours of the crisis

response by a full time nurse practitioner or on-cal)

psychiatrist In coordination with primary prescribers. as

appropriate.
/

2.2. Community Crisis Apartment Beds

Hsrtor Homes A. Amendment 01 Contmctor InlUaJs
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Exhibit A, Amendment 01

2.2.1. Beginning on or before July 1. 2017. the Contractor shall provide a minimum

of f6ur.(.4).communlty crisis apartment beds (with no .more than one.(1) bed
per crisis apartment), which shall serve as an alternate to hospilaiization

and/or Instltutionallzatlon. All crisis apartment beds must be certified under

administrative oile He-tA 1002 and include:'

2.2.1.1. At least one (1) bathroom with a sink, toilet, and a bathtub or

shower;

2.2.1.2. Specific sleeping area designated for each Individual (common
areas shall not be used as bedrooms):

2.2.1.3. Storage space for each individual's clothing and personal
possessions;

2.2.1.4. Accommodations for the nutrrtional needs of an Individual; and

2.2.1.5. At least one (1) telephone for incoming and outgoing calls.

2.2.2. An individual's stay at a crisis apartment shall be limited to a maximum of

Mven (7) days.

2.3. Transportation: Beginning on or before July 1. 2017.' the Contractor shall provide
transportation for Individuals from the site of the crisis to the apartment, and to their
home or other residential setting after stabilization has occurred.

2.3.1. Any staff member providing transportation must have:

2.3.1.1. A valid driver's license;

2.3.1.2. A property Inspected vehicle; and

2.3.1.3. Proof that vehicle is insured.

2.4. Eligibility for Services within the NH Mental Health Services System: Beginning on or
before July 1. 2017, the Contractor shall provide crisis stabilization services to
individuals regardless of the individual's eligibility for sen/ices under the NH Mental
Health Services System and In accordance with the follo^ng:

2.4.1. For Individuals with private health Insurance or any Insurance coverage not

provided by or through OHHS, the Contractor shall coordinate tr6atnr>ent
needs with end seek reimbursement for treatment delivered with the Insurer.

2.4.2. For individuals with health insurar>ce provided by a OHHS-contracted

Managed Care Organization (MCO), the Contractor shell coordinate
treatment needs with the MCO and seek reimbursement for treatment

delivered based on the provider agreement between the Contractor and the

MCO.

2.4.3. For Individuals already determined eligible for services within the NH Mental

Health System by a CMHC. the Contractor shall coordinate treatment needs
with the CMHC. and if applicable, the Indrvldual's health insurer.

HvborHomtfs £xhIbUA. Artendm«m01 Controctor (nlilsts
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2.4.4. For individuals not already determined eligible for services within the NH
Mentai.Health System by a.CMHC. the Contractor shall provide.crisis.

stabilization services presuming the IrKlividual Is eligible for services within

the NH Mental Health System.

2.4.4.1. DHHS shall, prior to July 1.2017, work with the Contractor to

formalize the process for the Contractor to document presumptive

eligibility.

2:4.4.2. The Contractor shell contact the Region 6 CMHC to coordinate and
seek a determination of eligibility for the provision of ongoing

services for the indivlduel post-transition from the Mobile Crisis

'  Services and Supports provided under this Agreement.

2.4.4.2.1. The Contractor shall, prior to July 1. 2017, formalize a
process with the Region 6 CMHC for such purposes
and submit it to the OHHS designee.

2.5. Coordinating Post-Transition Services: Beginning on or before July 1, 2017, the
Contractor shall ensure that, prior to an individual transltioning out of the Mobile Crisis
.Services and Supports provided under this Agreement, the individual has a shortjterm
post-crisis care plan that has been coordinated with the providers that will treat the
Individual after transition.

3. Staffing

3.1. Mobile Crisis Team Staffing: Beginning on or before July 1, 2017. the Mobile Crisis
Team shall at minimum be composed of trained master's-level clinicians, a peer
specialist and an on-call Psychlatrlst/APRN;

3.2. Crisis Apartment Staffing: Beginning on or before July 1. 2017 the Contractor shall
operate each crisis apartment with sufficient clinical support and oversight, and peer
staffing, twanty-four hours per day, seven days per week, as is reasonably necessary
to prevent unnecessary institutionalizatlon. Staff shall at minimum consist of:

. 3.2.1. One (1) Master level Clinician/nurse clinician onslte;

'3.2.2. One (1) Peer Specialist onslte; and

3.2.3. One (1) Psychiatrist/APRN on-call.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide coverage for the Mobile Crisis Team and Community
Crisis Apartment staffing when there are multiple concurrent crises, which may include
both in-person and by telephone, by ensuring resources are scheduled to meet the
community's fluctuating needs for mobile mental health crisis response. The
Contractor shall ensure staffing coverage Includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Skilled masters prepared clinicians, including full-time and per diem staff,

scheduled to ensure 2Af7 coverage;

3.3.2. Experienced peer support specialists scheduled per diem 24/7 to ensure on-

demand availability to clinicians mobilized In crisis responses;

K8ft>or Homes Exhibll A. Amendment 91 Contrsctor Initials
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3.3.3. 24/7 schedule of masters prepared clinicians and peer support specialists
who function as 'back-ups' for the regularly scheduled clinicians, as needed;

3.3.4. An MCT Coordinator and/or Director who shall be available to assume the
role of the masters level clinicians, as necessary;

3.3.5. Tertiary "back-up" staff skilled and versed In Mobile Crisis Team services,
employed in other roles within the Contractor's agency during regular
business hours that elect to be available per diem, as necessary;

3.3.6. 24/7 access to additional support from on-call psychiatrisl/APRN and Mobile
Crisis Team supervisory staff and edministrator-on-call, as needed for
consultation, mental health crisis management/treatment planning,
Implemenlation and resolution of any Issues/concerns that arise.

3.4. The Vendor shall ensure that all potential staff provides the following documentation
and successfully completes the following screening processes prior to providing
contracted services;

3.4.1. A minimum of tviro (2) references;

3.4.2. BEA5 State Registry Consent Form;

3.4.3. Central Registry Name Search Authorization; and

3.4.4. Criminal Record Release Authorization Form • General.

3.5. The Vendor shall ensure, prior to an offer of employment, the requirements of Section
3.4.2 through 3.4.4 are processed through the appropriate State departments to ensure
that the individual does not have a history of:

3.5.1. A felony conviction; or

3.5:2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

3.5.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

3.5.2.2. Violence;

3.5.2.3. Exploitation;

3.5.2.4. Child pornography;

3.5.2.5. Threatening or reckless corKluct;

3.5.2.6. Theft;

3.5.2.7. Driving under the Influence of drugs or alcohol; or

3.5.2.8. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior that could
endanger the well-being of a consumer.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure results from the forms identified in Section 3.4.2 through
3.4.4 are kept on file and available to the Department upon request.

3.7. Mobile Crisis Team and Community Crisis Apartment Staffing Minimum Qualifications:
The Contractor shall ensure thai the following minimum quaiffications are met:

HoitxvHome# £xWbhA.ArfnerwJmonifll Contractor Inniah, ̂  ̂
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3.7.1. Clinicians must have: a master's degree in psychology, psychiatric social
worV. psychiatric r^ursing, or mental health counseling; training in crisis

intervention services, risk management, assessment of suicide potential and

Integrated Treatment for co-occurring disorders; and a minimum of ten (10)

hours of continuing education related to behavioral health every two years;

3.7.2. Peer Specialists must havo: a high school diploma; certification as a peer
specialist; trsinir>g in crisis intervention; and a minimum of ten (10) hours of

continuing education related to behavioral health every two years; and

3.7.3. On-call Psychiatrist/APRNs-must be board certined in Psychiatry.

3.8. The Contractor shall ensure that staffing for the Mobile Crisis Team/Community Crisis
Apartments, and coverage staff avail3t>(e for the team and apartments, are trained to
perform the applicable services, including but not limited to: understanding the design
of the program, protocols established to collat>orate and coordinate mobile crisis
response with community partners, safety protocols, etc.

4. Project Plan - Start-up Period

4.1. Within ten (10) days after contract approval date, whichever occurs later, the Contractor
shall develop.and submit a final project plan to the Department for approval that:

4.1.1. Describes the action steps the Contractor shall complete to ensure Mobile

Crisis Services and Supports are fully operational on or before July 1. 2017;

4.1.2. Contains the timeline for completing all action steps;

4.1.3. Contains a plan for status meetings to occur every two weeks between the

Contractor arid a DHHS-desl9nee(s) from the contract approval date until the

date the Contractor provides DHHS with documented evidence that the

services described in Sections 2.1 and 2.2 are fuDy operational and DHHS

has issued written confirmation of the same.

4.2. DHHS reserves the right to require the Contractor to participate in more frequent
meetings and telephone conferences if at any time project plan milestones are not
achieved on schedule, project plan elements are incurring costs greater than the
approved budget, or DHHS is concerned project plan milestones are not being
satisfactorily achieved.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide bi-weekly project plan update reports to the DHHS
designeels) at least four days prior to each such meeting.

4.4. DHHS reserves the right to waive any bi-weekly status meeting or to conduct such
meetings through tele or web conferencing.

4.5. If. at any time, DHHS determines that achievement of project plan milestones is
insutncient to result in the Contractor's ability to deliver fully operational services by July
1, 2017, the Contractor shall be required to develop a corrective action plan that

demonstrates how the Contractor will revise the project plan and allocated project
resources - Including dedicated staff and financial supports - necessary to ensure that
the July 1, 2017 deadline will be met.

Hfiftm Homes A. Amendment 01 Contractor NUsts
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5. Reporting Requirements

'sVl. The C^r&^r ̂ali provlde monthly reports by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
which Include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Beginning on or before July 1. 2017:

5.1.1.1. Names of individuals who received seivlces;

5.1.1.2. The Insurance carrier for each individual who received services;

5.1.1.3. The date & time of contact for each individual:

5.1.1.4. The service/or services provided to each Individual;

5.1.1.5. The location of where service was provided;

5.1.1.6. The length of time service or services were provided to each
Individual;

5.1.1.7. Whether law enforcement was involved with each Individual;

5.1.1.8. Whether services were provided beyond the immediate crisis to

each individual;

5.1.1.9. Whether the individual averted a hospitalizatlon;

6.1.1.10. What the individual outcome of service provided was for each

individual (e.g., hospitalizalion, crisis apartment, home, emergency
room, etc.);

5.1.1.11. What the response tirrie was for each Individual;

5.1.1.12. What the referral source Nvas for each individual (e.g.. CMHC; ED;
law enforcement; individual/family); and

5.1.1.13. Whether the individual had LEP or required interpretation services.

5.1.2. The reports required In 5.1.1 through 5.1.1.13 shall be submitted by the
Contractor through the DHHS Phoenix system unless otherwise instructed on
a temporary basis by the DHHS deslgnee.

5.1.3. The. MCI.Monthly Compliance Report as specified in Exhibit Bt2 . - ■

6. Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall comply with all of the requirements of the Certification Standards
for Behavioral Health Community Residences He-M 1002.

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of calls received are acted upon within one (1) hour
of receiving the call for services in accordance svith contract requirements for response.

8. Community Outreach and Collaboration

8.1. The Contractor shall raise community awareness of the services specified herein, and
shall collaborate with community-providers, businesses, first responders. law
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enforcement, courts, etc. to develop protocols, as appropriate, to identify and respond
to ah Individual in need of Moblle_Crjsis Services and Supports.. This shall include but
not be limited to the Contractor, either singuiarty or in coliaboration with such
organizations, developing outreach matehai and marketing loois. The Contractor shall
also develop a brochure specific to (he services specified herein, and shall distribute
the brochure, at minimum, to appropriate organizations within Region 6 arid to
individuals served by the Mobile Crisis Team. The Contractor shall submit all such
documents to the OHHS deslgnee at least ten (10) days prior to implementing them.

6.1.1. Community Outreach and Collaboration efforts made during the start-up
period referenced in Section 4 shall be made by the Contractor as described
in the Project Plan and reported to OHMS as required In Section 4.

8.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure that ongoing community outreach and
collaboration, post July 1, 2017. continues as needed to support ongoing
community awareness of the services and supports provided under this
Agreement.

0. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

9.1. In order to ervable OHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to OHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement, and
Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall
Include all revenue sources and all related expenditures. The Profit and Loss
Statement shall include a budget column alloying for budget to actual analysis.
Statements shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end.
The Contractor will be evaluated on the following;

9.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

9.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by
the unrestricted cash on hand.

9.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments

divided by total operating expenditures, less

depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days In the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within three (3) months

•  •• ^end-should not include common slock. .

9.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash
arxJ cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty
(30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

9.1.2. Current Ratio:

9.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liat>ilities.,

9.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

HofborHonw* Exhibh A.AmeitameniSi Contractor InUais.
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New Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A, Amendment #1

9.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

.  current.ratio of 1.5:1.with 10.% variance.ailowed. ..

9.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio: '

9.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio Illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the

cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

9.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to dale debt service.

9.1.3.3. Pormula: Net Income plus Depreciatior\/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service {principal and

Interest) over the next iwetve (12) months.

9.1.3.4. Source of Data: The CorUractor's Monthly Financial Statements

identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

9.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

9.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

9.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to

cover its liabilities.

9.1.4.2. Dennition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

9.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by
total assets. i

9.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

9.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

ratio of .30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.

9.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

9.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months: or

9.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity slandardsior-
three (3) consecutive months, then

•9.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department staff
to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

9.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 8.2.1
and/or 8.2.2 have not been met.

9.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least every
thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

Hafbor Homes ExNM A.Amendmenl01 Contr»ctor iniUeia
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Exhibit A, Amendnrtent 01

9.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
. continued access to services as requested by the.Department. The

Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe

agreed upon by both parties.

9.3. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty4our
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
Investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to
have 8 material financial impact on and/or materldily impact or impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform urKter this Agreerhent with the Department.

9.4. The monthly Balance Sheet. Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all
other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and include
the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or
resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are due within
thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

4-,RFP-20W-DBH-04-MOBILE-01 PoQ* 13 ott J Data ^
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- Budget form
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach' means the toss- of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2  'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer ̂ curity
Incident" in section two (2) of NlST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Infprrnation' or "Confidential Data" means-all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information indudirig without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (QHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, dtsctosure. protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FT!). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives

- DHHS data-or-derivative data in accordance with the terrns of this Contract. •
r

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardwrare.
firmv^re. or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

vs. upd^to 1CW)9/18 ExhIWi K ConvactorinlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8.' 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blomethc records, etc.,
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individual^' Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F'R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected HeaHh Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Ruie" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organlzalion that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.
/  1 ' .

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, n^aintain or transmit Confidential lnformation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

Socurliy RoQulrcments Zh/iU^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disctosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over end above those, uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additbnah
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. i

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting.to confirrn compliance with.the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is Uansmitting DHHS data containir^
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use cornputer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. -

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure:-SSL encrypts^data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless networlt. End User must employ a virtual private r^lwortc (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless networt^.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential. Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information wilt be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also krwwn as Secure File Trarwfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

-  11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
.  data, must be encrypted.to.prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Irifomnation.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will onfy retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duralton of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computir>g. cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/Of Departm.eol .confidential. Information for contractor provided systems. ._

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
tJsers in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAlvlP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. entl-spam, anti-spywere. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to ar>d ensures its complete cooperation with tt^e State's
Chief Information Officer in the datection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

\

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Ck)ntractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any sut>contractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe, program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion end media
sanitization, or olhenMlse physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Departmeni of Commerce, the Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destructton. and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Conftdenlial Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means, of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A..'Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. lape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
. Users in support of prot^ing Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worit with the. Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sutnconlractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor wrill work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate, time frame "at the Departments discretion-with agreement by

.  .lhe-Contraclor...or-the Department may request..the survey be. completed when the-
sco^ of the engagement l>etween the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor vrill not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
- or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership memt>er vrithin the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and r^wovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: aedit monitoring services., mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the'
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level .and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § S52a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it..The safeguards must provide a, level and
scope of security that IS hot less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the • State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized ErwJ Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply~wtfi~sucH safeguards as referenced In S'^ion IV A. "alioveT
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Lastupdot® 1009/18 ContractofIriltlalt
DHHS intormsilon

Security Requiremenis

Pe9o7of9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disctosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only eulhorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files.containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data rnust be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-tosed
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. .understand thatiheir user crederitials (user name and passyvord) must not.be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or-indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for .oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided tn
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordanqqjv.ith .the..gggnpy*s docutuented. I.nciderit Haridling and grq.aph Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's.compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and. contents from among different
options, and t>6ar costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20:

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT .

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfrtcer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOfflce@dhhs.nh,gov . .
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state of new HAMPSHDIE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

JcnrtTA.Mmr» 119 PLEaSaNT STREtT, CONCORD. NH MJOr
C«3oiui«Sr M0W52-334S Eit 9544

Ffti: (03-171-4332 TDD Accm; 1400-735-29(4

IUl)a&Foi www.dbb».oh.|Ov
Dirrrlor

April 7. 2017 .

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
dftd the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

(1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into an agreement with
Hartxjr Homes. Inc. (Vendor #155358). 45 High Street, Nashua. NH 03060. for the provision
of Mc^le Crisis Services and Supports. In an amount not to exceed $2,877,226, effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30. 2019. This contract is
funded with 100% General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in Slate Fiscal Year 2017 and
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 and 2019, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Offtce if
needed and justified without approval from Governor and Executive Council. 05-95-92-922010-4117
HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HNS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CIWH PROGRAM
SUPPORT.

(2) Contingent upon approval of Requested Action (1), authorize the Department of Health and
Human Services to provide Harbor Homes. Inc. with an advance payment in an amount not
to exceed $250,000. effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval for
the provision of starl-up costs for the Mobile Crisis apartments. 100% General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2017, 05-95-
92-920010-5945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERViCES. JiEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS



His E*cellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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EXPLANATION

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.. Bureau of Mental Health
Services, is designated as New Hampshirels single state mental health authority. The Bureau seeks
to promote full community inclusion for adults (18 years or oWer) who have severe mental illness,
severe and persistent mental illness or who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a high
emphasis on supporting individuals in their community with a broad range of supports and ̂ rvices to
reduce the need for inpatient care.

Requested Action (1), supports New Hampshire's compliance with the Grists Services System
provisions contained within the Community Mental Health Agreement (Amanda D. Settlement). The
Crisis Services System is available 24 hours per day. seven days per week and provides timely and
accessible services and supports to individuals vrith mental illn^s. Including those with co-occurring
Substance Use Disorder, who are experiencing a mental heafth'crisis. Services within this system are
designed to: stabilize an Individual as quickly as practicable and to assist the individual In returning to
their pre-crisis level of functioning; provide interventions to avoid unnecessary hosprtalization,
incarceration or other admission; provide services and supports at the site of the crisis, and to promptly
assess individual needs. Services vflthin this system are also designed to identify services and
supports necessary to meet Individual needs, and to connect the individual to those supports In a
timely manner. Under the Agreement, the State must add region-specific mobile crisis capacity and
community crisis apartments in three Mental Health regions: Region 4 (Concord). 6 (Nashua), and 7
(Manchester) that meet the standards set forth in the Agreement. The Agreement phases in this new
capacity over three years: by June 30 of 2015. 2016 and 2017. Requested Action (1). if approved,
supports the State's compliance with the third and final addition of mobile crisis capacity and
community crisis apartments, and virill deliver critically-needed services in the Greater Nashua area.

The contract with Harbor Homes, lr>c. is designed to provide in Region 6 a Mobile Crisis Team
comprised of mental health professionals and peer support specialists, who are available to respond to
an individual experiencirrg a mental heallh crisis 24 hours per day. 7 days per week. The Team wll
provide needed supports to de-escalate the crisis, provide Ireatrrient and services to stabilize the
individuat work with other treatment providers and community partners to support the individual post
crisis stabilization, and will provide an alternative to hosprtalization and/or instrtutionalization through
access to a community crisis apartment, where the Individual can stay for up to seven (7) days before
returning home. The contract includes the development and ongoing operation of the Team and four,
single-occupancy community crisis apartments, to be co-located in Nashua. The rnodel is designed to
ensure that treatment needs are met throughout the crisis, individuals are residing in a safe and
supervised space as they recover and return to a.pre-crisis level of functioning, and that individuals are
able to transition from the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports back into the community with access to
appropriate supports within New Hampshire mental heallh system.

Requested Action (2), if approved, virill enable Harbor Homes, Inc. to financially support the cost
of needed renovations to the apartments and office space that the Mobile Crisis Team and community
crisis apartments will occupy. The contract includes a start-up period project plan and a scope and
budget for this purpose. The advanced payment represents only that portion of the start-up budget
which would pose a financial hardship to the organization to carry as credit pending reirnbursemenl
upon conclusion of the renovation.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu .
and the Honorable Council
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This contract was competitively bid. The Department published a Request for Proposals on the
Department's website on December 19. 2016. through January 30. 2017, in order to solicit proposals
from vendors to provide Mobile Crisis Services and Supports in the New Hampshire Community Mental
Health Region VI who are experiencing a mental health crisis, including those vrith a conxcurring
substance use disorder. Two proposals.were received.

The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team consisting of Department artd norv
Department personnel who are experienced and knowledgeable In Behavioral Health and Substance
Use Disorders. Harbor Homes Inc. was the high scoring bidder and was awarded the contract. The
bid summary sheet is attached.

The contract includes language to renew the agreement for up to two additional years, sutyect
to continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30. 2017. and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30. 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this contract, the State of New
Hampshire may be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement and individuals
experierxing a mental health crisis could end up in hospital emergency rooms. New Hampshire
Hospital and other settings, which may resutt in higher costs to the State.

Area Served: Community Mental Health Region 6 (Amherst, Brookline. Hollis. Hudson. Lilchfield.
Mason. Merrimack. Milford, Mont Vemon. Nashua)

I

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Approved by:

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox
Dir^or

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht DtpOftntnlo!Utohh and Humon Svvictt'Miaion itloioin conimunitit* and tomiliu in providingopportunilia far
eiliuiis lo ocfiieie /ttoUh and inde/Jt.ndence.



Fiscal Details

05-95-92-920010-5945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SERVICES, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

SFY Class Title Activity Code Budget

2017 102/500731 Contracts for Program

Services

92200000 $250,000

-

Subtotal $250,000

05-95-92-922010^117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BURAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

SFY Class Title Activity Code Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program

Services

92200000 $1,313,613

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program

Services

92200000 $1,313,613

Subtotal $2,627,226

Grand Total $2,877,226



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
/  Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

RFP Name

RFP-2017-OBH-04.MO8ILE

RFP Number

Bidder Name

1.

2.

3.

5.

8.

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Great Nashua Mental Health Center

Pase/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

210 1B2.S

210 ' 176.5

210 0

210 0

210 p

210 0

Reviewer Names.'

1.

Chid Beha^riorOHettih. Tech Teem .

73^Cne^fogSffl^pec55nil^^"
3. BHHS. Toch Teem

4. Review Speclst. BOAS, Tech Teem

Rotd (o WeSnest. VoKinteer, Toch

6. impravemnt & imegrtty. Cost Teem

7. Beheviofat Health. Cost Teem

8. Behtworel Health. Cost.Team



Subject-. ^4ob>le Crisis Servictt and Suppoits ffRf P-;^017»P6ti-0^-MOBiL£
FORM NUMBER P-37 (venion S/8/15)

Notke: This Bgreement and all of its anachnteots shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identifted to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of >4ew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
KH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Harbor Homes, Inc.

1.4 ConUBCtor Address

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

NurAcr

603-882-3616

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-4117

05-95-92-920010-5945

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2019

1.8 Price Limitation

52,877,226

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Cnllo, Esq., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

I.I I Contractors!

U

2 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
^\V-x.Vviuv.y.

.13 Acknowledgement: Staifcof VJv\ .Countyof Hi\\sJoC)rOOf^V*\

On'(Vp'U.\ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I. II. and acknowledged thai s/hc in the capacity
indicted in blocri.l2.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

OOaaffSON

iff«. (U.- s
ISeall

CM

1.13.2 NanietmdTifirbfNotajy or Justiceof the Peace

lCVY)bmm
1.15 Name and Title of Stale^gency Signatory1.14 Stale Agency Si^ature

•""h! cr..vO t—^ nDate:

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depanmem of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicabU)

By; Director, On:

1.17 Approval

By:

e Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (fapplicable)

1.16 Approval

By:

by the Covemor^d Executiv^jCouncilf (fapplicable) |

(j 0"=

Page 1 of 4

J-



2. employment OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sute of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I. I C'State"), engages
contractor identified in Wock 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perfonn, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the atuched
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Swkes").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OP SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effeciive on ihe dale the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreemcni as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become cfTcctive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 C'Effeaivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including wiihoui limiiaiion, any obligation to pay'
ihe Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwiihstandlng-any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in.no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder In excess of such available apprc^riated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contranor notice of such icrtnination. The Sute
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/price limitation/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of "
payment are identified and more paniculvly described In
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Sute of the contract price shall be the
only aird complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, end shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Coniracior for the Services. The Sute
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwiihsundlng unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the toul of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the ̂ ice Limiution set forth in block
I.E.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection wilh the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, suie, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may iiKlude the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with contmunication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive informtiion from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright'laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, ag^ sex,
handicap, rexual orier^ion, or nationaJ origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such dtscrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
. United States, the Contractor shall comply with ell the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 C'Equal ''
Employment OpportuniTy"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations end guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to .
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Stale or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel rvectssary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and ̂ all be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wrillhg, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contitctor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is e State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administrotion or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shal! syrvlve terminaiion of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTtca specified in blxk 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenani, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may lake any one,.or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and rccjuiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specificaJion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default Is
not timely remedied, icrminatc this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
detcnnines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shal) never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agrcemcni os breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. ,
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perfonnancc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, Including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, fonnulac, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcproductlons.'drawings, analyses,
graf^ic representations; computer programs, computer
printouts, noles.Tettcrs, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All dMa and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confrdcntiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Conrraciing
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date oftenninatlon. Theform, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

It. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE CTATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither ah agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shal) have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workera' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its eR^)loyecs.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBGONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest In this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of (he Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, ■
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, wd any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovcrei^ immunity of the State, which irhmunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain end
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.) comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 .OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole rtpiacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall lumish to the Contracting Officer
identified In Wock 1.9. or his or her successor, t certificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fUmtsh to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificatc<i) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Apeemeni no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ceftificaie($) of
insurance and any rencwab thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceftiricaic(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identifred in block 1.9. or his ■
or her successor, no fcss than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modiftcaiion of the policy.

I  15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing thb agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies end wananis thai the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requircmenu of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensalion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor b subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Wotters' Cornpcnsaiion in
conn^tion with activities which the peiwn proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Apecment. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A arid any
applicable rcncwal($) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers*
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under thb Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Sute to
enforce any provisions hereof aflcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Defauh. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is rtquirtd under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, end is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agrtemeni
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of consthiction shall be applied against or
in .favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agjtemcni
art for reference purposes only, and the words contained
thcitin shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the intcrprtlaiion, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this AgreemeiiL

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement ore held by a court of competent jOTSdiction to,
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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N0W Hampshire Departmont of Health and Human Services
Mohilo Crisis Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire Oeneral Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agericy has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided^er June 30. 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered (or the
SFY201&-2019biennia.

1.4. Beginning on or before July 1, 2017, the Contractor shall provide Mobile Crisis
Services and supports, as specified in Section 2, in the New Hampshire Community
Mental Health Region VI (Amherst. Brookline, Hollis, Hudson. LItchfield. Mason,

, Merrimack, Miiford, Mont Vemon, and Nashua) to individuals eighteen (18) years and
older vrho are experiencing a mental health crisis.

2. Services to Be Provided

2.1. Mobile Crisis Team

2.1.1. Beginning on or before July 1, 2017. the Contractor shall provide a
designated central phone triage system and a qualified Mobile Crisis team to

provide crisis services. The central phone triage system and crisis services
shall be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seveh days per week. The

services shall include at minimum but not be limited to;

2.1.1.1. A central phone triage system answered by a Master's-level clinician.
Telephone triages shall include but are not limited to inrtial telephone
calls completed by the clinician to complete the iriitial risk asdessments

to determine the level of service that will be provided to the caller. The

Contractor shall refer callers to the emergency deparlment/eriiergehcy
room when the assessment determines the individual requires an

emergency medical assessment and treatment in addition to psychiatric
services;

2.1.1.2. Telephone coaching provided by a Master's-level clinician arid/or
certified peer specialist in order to provide supportive listening, program
solving and referrals, as appropriate;

Htrttor Homes ExhibhA Contrnctoi Inttiili
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New Hampshire Department of HaaRh and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Suppoits - Region 6

Exhibit A

2.1.1.3. Providing community-based fBCe-lo-face assessment and intervention
for persons experiencing a mental health crisis, in onjer to de-esralate
the crisis without removing the Individual from his or her home and/or
community prograrns. consistent with safety protocols;

2.1.1.3.1. The Mobile Crisis team response to an individual in crisis shall
occur primarily in or at the individuals' home or other natural
envirohments. but may occur in otherlocalions as may be needed

for the crisis, inctudirig but not limited to;

2.1.1.3.1.1. Community settings;

2.1.1.3.1.2. Outpatient mental health,settings;

2.1.1.3.1.3. Crisis apartments; and

2.1.1.3.1.4. Police stations.

2.1.1.4. The Mobile Crisis team shall:'

2.1.1.4.1. Promptly.assess individual needs;

2.1.1.4.2. Identify the sen/ices and supports that are necessary to meet the
individual's needs;

2.1.1.4.3. Assist the individual with accessing those services and supports in
a timely manner, either In-person or by telephone;

2.1.1.4.4. Provide interventions to avoid unnecessary hosprtalitation.
iiKarceration, or admission to a Designated Receiving Facility,
Acute Psychiatric Residential Treatment Program, emergency
room, ornursing home:

2.1.1.4.5. Wcrlt to stabilize individuals as quickly as practicable and assist
them in returning to their pre-crisis level of functioning;

2.1.1.4.6. Work and coordinate with law enforcement personnel to respond
to individuals In mental health crisis ir^ situations involving law

•  enforcement contact;

2.1.1.4.7. Involve peer specialist(s) in providing crisis services and supports;

2.1.1.4.6. Provide up to seven (7) days of services and supports, following
the onset of the crisis: and

2.1.1.4.9. Provide, at the Vendor's discretion, services and supports to
individuals beyond the immediate crisis period.

2.1.1.4.10. When appropriate, the Mobile Crisis Team shall conduct lethality
assessments thai are completed by a Masteris-level clinician
during an intensive face-to-face assessment which Includes, but
is not limited to:
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2.1.1.4.10.1. Obtaining ttie Individual's history, including but not
limited to. Identifying prol>lems in narrative form of
how and why the person is presenting at this time;

2.1.1.4.10.2. Listing immediate safety concerns from the point of
view of the individual in crisis, referring parties and
other collateral sources;

2.1.1.4.10.3. Listlrtg of crisis precipltants, available Internal and
external supports;

2.1.1.4.10.4. Listing of relevant past symptoms, treatments, artd
medical & substance co-morbidities.

2.1.1.4.10.5. Narrative of current functional status.

2.1.1.4.10.6. Narrative of current mental status exam with serial
assessment over time and in response to
immediate treatment interventions.

2.1.1.4.10.7. Creating a disposition/crisis plan.

2.1.1.5. The Mobile Crisis Team's peer support specialist shall provide services
in a synergistic fashion with strong partnerships among members of the
crisis team in order to offer:

2.1.1.5.1. Specialized recovery promoting activities;

2.1.1.5.2. Supportive counseling;

2.1.1.5.3. Supportive listening:

2.1.1.5.4. Identification of potential community based resources available to
individuals; and

2.1.1.5.5. Practical problem solving around life stressors.

2.1.1.6. The Mobile Crisis team shall have the ability to respond to an
Individual's heeds onsite, typically within one (1) hour of the request for
crisis services, within Mental Health Region VI, recognizing that
occasionally, reaching individuals in more distant, rural areas of the
region may lake more than one hour.

2.1.1.7. The Mobile Crisis Team shall provide, as appropriate to meet the needs
of the individual served, crisis stabilization services that shall include but
are not limited to: •

2.1.1.7.1. Case management services that Include expedited referrals and
linkages to community, based services through partnerships In a
behaviorally integrated manner. This shall include, for Ihose
individuals agreeable., connecting the Individual with the
appropriate Community Mental Health Center.

2.1.1.7.2. For Individuais participating in an Assertive Community Treatment
(ACT) Team within a Community Mental Health Center (CMHC),
the Mobile Crisis Team shall contact the ACT Team upon
identifying the individual's participation. The Mobile Crisis Team

fky
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Shall work with the ACT Team to collaborate and coordinate the
services needed to stabilize the Individual and transition the
lr>dividual back into the community and the ACT Team's oversight
as soon as practicable.

2.1.1.7.3. Therapeutic services based on best practices and evidence
Infonmed approaches.

2.1.1.7.4. Substance Use Disorders: for individuals identified by the Mobile
Crisis Team as having a sut^tance use disorder, the Team shall
coordinate Immediate substance use disorder treatment needs
with the individual's current substance use disorder provider, with
the Contractor's substance use disorder professjonals. or with
Other appropriate substance use disorder professionals as nftay be
needed to assist the individual with stabilization.

2.1.1.7.5. For individuals that are in an emergency department but for whom
the Mobile Crisis Team has been notifted is in need of crisis
stabilization, the Mobile Crisis Team shall endeavor to provide

■  services to the indi'^dual, including appropriate treatment.

2.1.1.7.5.1. The Contractor shall develop agreements or
memorandums of understanding with the emergency
departments in Region 6 to support the Contractor's
obligation to serve such individuals within an
emergency department. .On or before July 1, 2017.
the Contractor shall submit such agreements to the
DHHS designee.

2.1.1.7.6. Supports that emphasizes psycho-education, empowerment,
partnership and the right to self-determination for Individuals
challenged by mental illness and recovery;

2.1.1.7.7. Admissions to a Community Crisis Apartment, referenced in
Section 2.2. While an individual is admitted Into a community
crisis apartment, the Mobile Crisis Team shall provide brief and
continuous psychiatric intervention within this setting to maximize
respite and support while minimizing the rteed for inpatient
hospitalization. The Contractor shall ensure that:

2.1.1.7.7.1. Ongoing safety assessments are conducted;

2.1.1.7.7.2. Supervision and serial evaluation of mental status
are continuous;

2.1.1.7.7.3. There is a focus on individual coping strengths in
order to develop a recovery plan;

2.1.1.7.7.4. Medication evaluations are conducted;

2.1.1.7.7.5. Individual supportive therapy is available; and

2.1.1.7.7.6. Referrals for psychiatric, social services, substance
use arid medical aftercare are coordinated.

2.1.1.7.8. Emergency psychopharmacology Interventions provided within
twenty-four (24) hours of the crisis response by a full time nurse

HifborHOfriM Eitf^IbHA Contractor biKUli,
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practitioner or on-ca!l psychiatrist in coordination with primary
prescribers, as appropriate.

2.2. Community Crisis Apartment Beds

2.2.1., Beginning on or before July 1. 2017, the Contractor shall provide a minimum of
four (4) community crisis apartment beds (with no more than one (1) bed per
crisis apartment), which shail serve as an alternate to hospitalization and/or
institutionalization. Ail crisis apartment beds must be certlHed under

administrative rule He-M 1002 and include:

2.2.1.1. At least one (1) t>athroom with a sink, toilet, and a bathtub or shower;

2.2.1.2. Specific sleeping area designated for each individual (common areas
shall not be used as bedrooms);

2.2.1.3. Storage space for each individual's clothing and personal possessions;

2.2.1.4. Accommodations for the nutritional needs of an individual; and

2.2.1.5. At least one (1) telephone for incoming and outgoing calls. ■

2.2.2. An individual's stay at a crisis apartment shall be limited to a maximum of
seven (7) days.

2.3. Transportation: Beginning on or before July 1. 2017. the Contractor shall provide
transportation for Individuals from the site of the crisis to the apartment, and to their
home or other residential setting after stabilization has occurred.

2.3.1. Any staff member providing transportation must have:

2.3.1.1. A valid driver's license;

2.3.1.2. A properly inspected vehicle; and

2.2.1.3. Proof that vehicle Is insured.

2.4. Eligibility (or Services within the NH Mental Health Services System: Beginning on or
before July 1. 2017. the Contractor shall provide crisis stabilization services to
individuals regardless of the individual's eligibility for services under the NH Mental
Health Services System and in accordance Nvith the following:

2.4.1. For individuals with private health insurance or any insurance coverage not
provided by or through DHHS. the Contractor shall coordinate treatment needs
with and seek reimbursement for treatment delivered with the insurer.

2.4.2. For Individuals with health insurance provided by a DHHS-contracted Managed
Care Organization (MCO). the Contractor shall coordinate treatment needs with
the MCO and seek reimbursement for treatment delivered based on the

prov'tder agreement between the Contractor and the MCO.

2.4.3. For individuals already determined eligible for services within the NH Mental
Health System by a CMHC. the Contractor shall coordinate treatmerit needs
with the CMHC, and if applicable, the individual's health insurer.

H»rt)OtHomW ExhtWA
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2.4.4. For individuals not already determined eligible for services within the NH
Mental Health System by a CMHC. the Contractor shall provide crisis
stabilization services presuming the iridivldual is eligible for services within the
NH Mental Health System.

2.4.4.1. DHHS shall, prior to July 1, 2017, work with the Contractor to formalize
the process for the Contractor to document presumptive eligibility.

2.4.4.2. The Contractor shall contact the Region 6 CMHC to coordinate and
seek a determination of eligibility for the provision of ongoing.services
post4ransition from the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports provided

under this Agreement forlhe individual who chooses to receive services
at the Region 6 CMHC.

2.4.4.2.1. The Contractor shall, prior to July 1. 2017, formalize a process
with the Region 6 CMHC for such purposes and submit it to the
DHHS desigrtee.

2.5. Coordinating Post-Transition Services: Beginning on or befoie July 1. 2017, the
Contractor shall ensure that, prior to an individual transitioning out of the Mobile Crisis

Services and Supports provided under this Agreement, the individual has a short-term
post-aisis care plan that has been coordinated with the providers that will treat the
individual after transition.

3. Staffing

3.1. Mobile Crisis Team StafTing: Beginning on or before July 1, 2017. the Mobile Crisis
Team shall at minimum be composed of trained master's-leve) clinicians, a peer

specialist and an orvcall Psychiatrisl/APRN;

3.2. Crisis Apartment Staffing: Beginning on or before July 1, 2017 the Contractor shall
operate each crisis apartment with sufficient clinical support and oversight, and peer
staffing, twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, as is reasonably necessary to
prevent unnecessary institutionalization. Staff shall at minimum consist of:

3.2.1. One (1) Master level Clinician/nurse clinician onsite;

3.2.2. One (1) Peer Specialist onsite; and

3.2.3. One (1) Psychlatrist/APRN on-call.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide coverage for the Mobile Crisis Team and Community
Crisis Apartment staffir>g when there are multiple concurrent crises, which may include
both in-person and by telephone, by ensuring resources are scheduled to meet the
community's fluctuating needs for mobile mental health crisis response. The Contractor
shall ensure staffing coverage Includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Skilled masters prepared clinicians, including full-time and per diem staff,
scheduled to ensure 24/7 coverage;

HartwHomM EkWMA Contfadof Inmali
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3.3.3. 24/7 schedule of masters prepared clinicians and peer support specialists who
function as 'back-ups' for the regularly scheduled clinicians, as needed;

3.3.4. An MCT Coordinator and/or Director virho shall be available to assume the role
of the masters level clinicians, as necessary;

3.3.5. Tertiary 'back-up' staff skilled and versed in Mobile Crisis Team services,
employed in other roles within the Contractor's agency during regular business
hours (hat elect to be available per diem, as necessary;

3.3.6. 24/7 access to additional support from on-call psychiatrist/APRN and Mobile
Crisis Team supervisory staff and admlnistrator-cn-call, as needed for
consultation, mental health crisis managementAreatmenl planning,
implementation and resolution of any issues/concerns that arise.

3.4. The Vendor shall ensure that alt potential staff provides the following documentation
and successfully completes the following screenjng processes prior to providing
contracted services:

3.4.1. A minimum'of two (2) references;

3.4.2. BEAS State Registry Consent Form;

3.4.3. Central Registry Name Search Authorization; and

3.4.4. Criminal Record Release Authorization Form - Ger»eral.

3.5. The Vendor shall ensure, prior to an offer of employment, the requirements of Section
3.4.2 through 3.4.4 are processed through the appropriate State departments to ensure
that the individual does not have a history of:

3.5.1. A felony conviction: Of

3.5.2. Any misdemeanor conviction InvoMng:

3.5.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

3.5.2.2. Violence;

3.5.2.3. Exploitation;

3.5.2.4. Child pornography:

3.5.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

3.5.2.6. Theft:

3.5.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol; or

3.5.2.8. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior that tould
endanger the well-being of a consumer.

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure results from the forms identified in Section 3.4.2 through
3.4.4 are kept on file and available to the Department upon request..

j)/Hi/tmHome* £xhiMA Contr*c(orlnrdb.
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3.7. Mobile Crisis Team and Community Crisis Apartment Staffir>g Minimum Qualificalions:
The Contractor shall erasure that the following minimum qualirications are met;

3.7.1. Clinicians must have: a master's degree in psychology, psychiatric social work,
psychiatric nursing, or mental health counseling: training in crisis intervention
services, risk management, assessment of suidde potential and Integrated
Treatment for cooccurring disorders; and a minimum of ten (10) hours of
continuing education related to behavioral health every two years;

3.7.2. Peer Specialists must have: a high school diploma; certification as a peer
specialist; trainir>g lr> crisis intervention; and a minimum of ten (10) hours of
continuing education related to behavioral health every two years; and

3.7.3. Or>-cail Psychiatrist/APRNs must be board certified in Psychiatry.

■ 3.8. The Contractor shall ensure that staffing for the Mobile Crisis Team. Community Crisis
Apartments, and coverage staff available for the team and apartments, are trained to
perform the applicable services, lncludir>g but not limited to: understaryfing the design
of the program, protocols established to collaborate and coordinate mobile crisis
response with community partners, safety protocols, etc.

4. Project Plan - Start-up Period

4.1. Within ten (10) days after contract approval date, whichever occurs later - the Contractor
shall develop and submit a final project plan to the Department for approval that:

4.1.1. Describes the action steps the Contractor shall complete to ensure Mobile
Crisis Services and Supports are fully operational on or before July 1. 2017;

4.1.2. Contains the timeline for completing all action steps:

4.1.3. Contains a plan for status meetings to occur every two weeks between the
Contractor and a DHHS-deslgnrfe(s) from the contract approval date until the
date the Contractor provides DHHS with documented evidence that the
services described In Sections 2.1 and 2.2 are fully operational and DHHS has
issued written confirmation of thb same.
9

4.2. DHHS reserves the right to require the Contractor to participate in more frequent
meetings and telephone conferences if at any time project plan milestones are not
achieved on schedule, project plan elements are incurring costs^reater than the
approved budget, or DHHS Is concerned project plan milestones are not being
satisfactorily achieved.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide bi-weekly project plan update reports to the DHHS
designee(8) at least four days prior to each such meeting. .

4.4. DHHS reserves the right to waive any bi-weekly status meeting o\ to conduct such
meetings through tele or web confcfcncing.

4.5. If. at any time. DHHS determines that achievement of project plan milestones Is
Insufficient to result in the Contractor's ability to deliver fully operational services by July

ik/
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1. 2017, the Contractor shall be required to develop a corrective action plan that
demonstrates how the Contractor will revise the project plan and allocated project
resources - including dedicated staff and financial supportis - necessary to ensure that
the July 1. 2017 deadline will be met.

S. Reporting Requiremertts

5.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports by the tenth (lOth) day of each month,
which include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Beginning on Of before July 1. 2017:

5.1.1.1. Names of Individuals who received services;

5.1.1.2. The insurance carrier for each individual who received senrices;

5.1.1.3. The date & time of contact for each individual;

5.1.1.4. The service/or services provided to each individual;

5.1.1.5. The location of where senrlce was provided;

5.1.1.6. The length of time service or services were provided to each Individual;

5.1.1.7. Whether law enforcement was Invotved with each individual;

5.1.1.8. Whether services were provided beyond the Immediate crisis to each
individual;

5.1.1.9. Whether the individual averted a hospitalization;

5.1.1.10. What the Individual outcome of service provided was for each Individual
(e.g., hospilalizatlon, crisis apartment, home, emergency room, etc.);

5.1.1.11. What the response time was for each individual; f

5.1.1.12. What the refenal source was for each individual (e.g.. CMHC; ED; law
enforcement; individual/family); and

5.1.1.13. Whether the individual had LEP or required interpretation services.

5.1.2. The reports required in 5.1.1 through 5.1.1.13 shall be submitted by the
Contractor through the DHHS Phoenix system unless othetwise instructed on a
temporary basis by the DHHS designee.

5.1.3. The MOT Monthly Compliance Report as specified in Exhibit B-2

6. Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall comply with all of the requirements of the Certification
Standards for Behavioral Health Community Residences He-M 1002.

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of calls received are acted upon within one (1) hour
of receiving the call for services In accordance with contract requirements for
response.

in/
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8. Community Outreach and.Collaboration

8.1. The Contractor shall raise community awarene^ of the services specified herein, artd
shall collaborate with community*pfovidefS, businesses, first' responders. law
enforcement, courts, etc. to develop protocols, as appropriate, to identify and respond
to an individual in need of Mobile Crisis Services and Supports. This shall include but
not be limited to the Contractor, either singularty or in collaboration with such
organizations, developing outreach material and marlceting tools. The Contractor
shall also develop a brochure specific to the services specified herein, and shall
distribute the brochure, at minimum, to appropriate organizatjons within Region 6 and
to individuals served by the Mobile Crisis Team. The Contractor shall submit all such
documents to the DHHS designee at least ten (10) days prior to Implementing them.

8.1.1. Community Outreach and Collaboration efforts made during the start-up
period refererKed in Section 4 shall be made by the Contractor as described

In the Project Plan and reported to DHHS as required in Section 4.

8.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure that ongoing community outreach and
collat)oratlpn, post July 1. 2017. continueSsas needed to support ongoing

community awareness of the services and supports provided under this
Agreement.

Ki/txy Homu £xh!bil A Cont/actor Inltiits
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is directly funded with General Funds .anticipated to be available based
upon continued appropnation. This contract also authorizes the Contractor to seek
reimbursement from Federal funding sources as specified herein, conditioned upon
continued support of the prograrh by the state and federal governments. Access to
supporting federal funding Is dependent upon the selected Contractor meeting the
requirements in accordance vwlh the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Medical Assistance Program. Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.778. Federal Award IdentificaUon Number
(FAIN) NH20144.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form
p.37, Block 1.0, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services.

3. Payment for Mobile Crisis Team Services and Supports - Starl-Up Period:
Payment for start-up period expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be made by
DHHS based on the start-up budget specified in Exhibit B-3; the total of all such
payments shall not exceed the specified start-up budget total and shall not exceed the
total expenses actually incurred by the Contractor for the start-up period. The following
invoice and payment provisions shall apply to the start-up period:

3.1. Subject to Governor and Executive Council approval for DHHS to make an advanced
payment to the Contractor for certain start-up period costs. DHHS shall make an
advanced payment to the Cohtractor in the amount of $149,980.

3.2. The balance of DHHS payments made to the Contractor for start-up period expenses
.  incurred by the Contractor shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.2.1. In the event the Governor and Executive Council does not approve DHHS"
request for the authority to makd ah advanced payment to the Contractor, as
referenced in paragraph 3,1. alt DHHS payments to the Contractor for the start
up period shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.3. Upon conclusion of the start-up period, the Contractor shall submit a start-up period
expenditure report and invoite that documents the actual expenditures, the Contractor
incurred for tulfillmerit Of the contracted services applicable to ihe start-up period. If
applicable, the report .and invoice shall also document the Contractor's application of the
start-up payment, referenced in paragraph 3.1, and the invoice tola! amount due frorn
DHHS shall be reduced by the amount if such payment. The Contractor shall submit
the start-up period expense report and invoice specified in Exhibit B-1 for this purpose.

3.3.1. In the event the Govemor and Executive Council does not approve DHHS'
request for the authority to makd an advanced payment to the Contractor, as
referenced In paragraph 3.1, the Contractor may more frequently submit the
expenditure report and invoice referenced in paragraph 3.3. The Contractor shall
ensure that subsequent expenditure reports and invoices reflect any DHHS
payments received and the subsettuent balance due.

HartwMomw B Contmctor WtUb
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Payment for Mobile Crisis Team Services and Supports • Post Implementation
Period: Payment for all services and expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis,
only for actual expenditures the Contractor incurs for fulfillment of the contracted
services referenced in paragraph 2, less (he amount of revenue the Contractor collects
from third-party payers for delivery of contracted services arid the remaining Contractor
Match funds specified in Exhibit B-3.

4.1. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided by the Mobile
Crisis Team from third-party payers as follows:

4.1.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals:

4.1.1.1. Through the Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
Medicaid Care Management providers: if the individual is enrolled with a
Managed Care Organization (MCO), the vendor will be paid in
accordance with its contract with the MCO.

4.1.1.2. Through the DHHS Medicaid Fee for Service program: if the individual is
not enrolled v^h a MCO, the vendor will be paid in accordance with the
NH DHHS Medicaid Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.1.2. For Individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, the vendor will directly bill the other insurance or payers.

4.1.3. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they
receive, the vendor will directly bill DHHS to access contract funds provided
through this Agreement.

4.2. The Contractor shall monthly document the expenses incurred for the fulfillment of
services referenced in paragraph 2, and revenue received in response to the billing
referenced in paragraphs 4.1.1 through 4.1.2. The Contractor shall submit this
documentation on the DHHS approved invoice template and identify the amount of
reimbursement to be billed under this contract for the applicable month. Services not
covered by Medicaid or by other Insurance that are eligible for payment of contract funds
shall be paid to the Contractor within forty*five (45) days of DHHS invoice receipt.

4.2.1. The Contractor shall itemize all expenses consistent with the budget line Item
number in accordance with the Contract Budget (Exhibit B-3) for the applicable
period.

4.2.2. The Contractor shall not seek payment of contract funds for services the
Contractor bills to Medicaid or other insurance payers unless the folldwing
occurs:

4.2!2.1. K services the Contractor has billed to Medicaid or other insurance payers
are not paid for consistertt with (he applicable reimbursement
arrangement, the Contractof may invoice DHHS for the cost of services

, billed to such payof> only after exhausting claims appeal processes or
other resolution avenues allowable under the respective insurance plan.

4.2.3. The Contractor shall include the following additional information on each invoice,
at minimum:

g.
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4.2.3.1. Agency Name;

4.2.3.2. Amounl of request;

4.2.3.3. Program Name (Mobile Crisis Response Team or Crisis Apartments);

4.2.3.4. Time Period for which reimbursement is requested;

4.2.3.5. Date of Request; and

4.2.4.' Beginning July 1, 2017, with each monthly invoice submitted to DHHS for
reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit a Mobile Crisis Teams Compliance
Report (Exhibit 8-2).

4.2.5. All invoices submitted by the Contractor are subject to approval by the DHHS
designee for the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports program prior to DHHS
processing payment to the Contractor. DHHS reserves the right to withhold
and/Of reduce payments if the Contractor is not In compliance as Iridicated by the
Mobile Crisis Team Compliance Report referenced in paragraph 4.2.4.

4.2.6. The Contractor shall submit Invoices electronically to the attention of the DHHS
designee. DHHS shall provide the Contractor with the name and email address
for the DHHS designee upon contrg^ approval, and update this information as
needed.

4.2.7. The Contractor may submit a final payment request to DHHS for reimbursement;
in no event shall the final payment request be submitted later than sixty (60) days
after the Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice and accompanying
documentation may result in nonpayment.

5. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
vrith any State or Federal law, rule or regulabon applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services, required reports, or other contractual oWigations contained in this
Agreement, have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
specified herein.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37. a contract amendment limited to the
adjustment of amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related
Hiems. and arrterxJment of related budget exhibits, may be made by written agreement of
both parties through the Budget Office If needed and justified, without approval from
Governor and Executive Council.
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Exhibit B-2

MOBILE CRISIS TEAMS

COMPLIANCE REPORT

Agency Nome: ^ Monlh:

The Contrectof shall ensure that the Mobile Crisis Team is available twenty-four (2a) hours per day, seven (7) days pet
week.

Meets compliance □ Does not meet compliance □
Corrective AcHoo Plao:

The Mobile Crisis Team is composed of clinicians trained to provide behavioral health emergency services and crisis
iniervcntion services, and also includes at least one (I) peer specialist and one (1) on-call psychiatrist/APRN.

Meets compliance O Docs not meet compliance □
Corrective Actioo Plao:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to respond to individuals twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week onsite
in their homes and in other natural environments and community settings where crises arise, including in crisis
apanments.

Meets compliance □ Does nfij meet compliance O
Corrective Action Plao:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to offer services and supports via telephone and, whenever necessary, consistent with"
legitimate safely concerns, meet face-to-facc to dc-cscaiate crises without removing the individuals from their homes
and^or community programs.

Meets compliance □ Does nfii meet compliance O
Corrective Action Plao:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to provide services and supports until the crisis subsides, up to seven (7) days following
the onset of the crisis.

Meets compliance D Docs flOl 0
Corrective Action Plan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to work with law enforcement personnel to respond to individuals in mental health crisis
who come into contact with law enforcement.

Meets compliance □ Docs nol meet compliance □
Corrective Action Plan:

Contractor tnltlals It
aWl"Submit Electronically with the Inyolce/Docoraeoiotion-Espensei Incurred on a Monthly Bails Date
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Exhibit Budget

HampsWr® Oopvtment of Hoalth end Human Services
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New Hampshire Department of Health aixJ Human SeivJcos
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

'Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all furtds received by the (^ntraclor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor (or services provided to eligible
Individuals arxJ. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants artd
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall bo made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2  Time and Manner of DetormlnaUon: Eligibility Oclermlnailoos shall be mode on forma provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be rhade and remade el such times as are prescribed by
the DepartmenL

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereur*ler, wttlch file shall include aD
information necessary to support an eligibility determination aivJ such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumlsh the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility delerminations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereundcr. as vrell as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding thai delermination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be pcrmitt^ to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re^pplicanl shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or KIckbecka: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employmcr^ on behalf of the Contractor, any Syl>*Contr8CtOf or
the Slate In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A pJ this
Contract. The Slate may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
detennined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials. ofTiccrs. employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. RotTXMCttvo Payments: Notwtthslandir*g anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other documcnL contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood erxl agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: NoNrilhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the ConlracL nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Conuactor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such senrice. or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
tunders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure'Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments'hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event rtew rates shati be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

wExhlbh C > special Provisions Contractor Inlllab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereundcr. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Conuactor ag.rees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Departnnent to the Contractor for services ,
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE ANDCONFIOENTIAUTY;

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eiigiblllty records specified ebove. the Contra|dor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting an costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Controctor In the performance of the Contract, arxf oil
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficlentty and
properly reflect all-such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, vrilhout llmUation. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kirtd contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
DcpartmcnL

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroQmeni, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall irtdude ell records of application and
eligibility (induding all forms required to determine eligibility for each such re^pient). records
regarding the pmvision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such senrices.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as priescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations'' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs; Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) a.s
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

OepartmenL the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been dis^owed t)ecause of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: AH information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services arfo the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their offldal duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose r>ot
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the redpienL his
attorney or guardian.

ExNblt C - SpecUJ Provbions Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshtro Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anythir^ to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Rscal and Statistical: The Contiactor agrees to submit the followtng reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Firianclal Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a det^ed description of

aU costs and non-ajlowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such FInanda) Reports shall be sutxriltted on the form
designated by the Oeparlment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final repon shall t>e submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of the temi
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department ar^ shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Sorvtcea: Dtsallovrance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and ail (he obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after (he end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided hov^ver, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department'shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from (he Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shad Include (he following '
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wHh the State
'  of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part

by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Departmbnt of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS wDI retain copyright ownership for any and ad original materials
produced, inctuding. but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters. Of reports. Cohtractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of FaclitUos: Compliance with Laws and Rogulatlons: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the'Conb^or shall comply with all taws, orders and regulations of federal,'
state, county and municipal authorilies and with any direction of any Public Officer or offioers
pursuant to laws vriilch shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental Ucense or
permd shall be required for the operation of the sdid facility or the performanoe of the said services,
the Contractor wiD procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply vrith the terms and
cor>ditions of each such license or permit. In connection ̂ Ih the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor heret)y covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all niles. orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of (he Fire Marshal end
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in c^formance with local building and zoning codes, by-
lavrs and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): the Contractor wilt provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Offibe for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $5Ck),000 or more. If the recipient receives 625,000 or more and haj^ M or

ExhIbB C - Spedal Pwbton» Cootroctof InRfah
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Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Hoatth and Human Servlcos
Exhibit C

more employees. It will maintain a current E60P on file and submit an EEOP Certificdtion Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on filo. For redpients recclvlr>g less than 525.000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount d,the award, the recipient win provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medicdi and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to daim the exemption.
EEOP Certificatton Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Englleh Proficiency (LEP): As ctanTied by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Profidency. and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the t>asi8 of limited English profidency (LEP). To ensure
complianee with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs. ^

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Corrtractor Employe Whistleblowor Protectlorts: The
foOowing shaD apply to all contracts that exceed the Sim^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee WHtsTLEaiowER Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
WMSTiEBLCWER Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contrad and employees working on this contract wiD be subject to the whisUeblower rights
and remedies in the pilol program on Contractor employee whisDeblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239)8nd FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whlstieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall inserl the substar>ce of this clause. Induding this paragraph (c). (n all
subcontracts over the'simpUried acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractore: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or fur^clions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Coritrectof shall retain-the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate tfw subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funcbon(s). Th'cs is accomplished through a written agreement that spedfies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposir^ sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the fdlowing:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontrador's
periformance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - SpkUI Prownions Cont/«csor tnilUs.
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Now Hampshire Dopartment of Heahh and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mcen those direct and indirect items ol expense determined t>v the Department to,be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
^titled Tinancial Management GukJelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean Ute document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance vwih the terms and cortditions of the Contract and settir»g forth
the total cost artd sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: VVhercver federal or. stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be emended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of ̂mintstrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hanipshire
Administralive Procedures Act. NH RSA Oh S41-A, for the purpose of implementing Slate of NH and
federal regulations promulgated (hereurtder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractorguarantees that funds provided underlhis
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExhIM C 7 spodal Provbtont
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crtals Services and Supports - Region 6

Exhibit C-l

pEVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement. Is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obltgations of the State

. hcfcunder. Including wlihout^.limitation. the continuance of payments, in \^oie or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availablHly of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othen^e
modifies the approprtatlon or avallaWlliy of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services. In whole or In part. In r\o event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereurtder In excess of appropnaled or available fur>ds. In
the event of a reduction, termlnatioo or modiftcation of appropriated or available funds, the
State Shan have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agraenwnl
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account'into the
Account{s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account-Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time (or any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its
qjtion to termiriate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
terminabof^. develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement." Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperal© with the Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the AgrccmenI and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communlcaticn and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as
requested.

10.4 In the event thai services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receivu^
services under the Agreement are transilioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers'or the $lale. the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individu^
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

10 6 In the event of termination under Paragraph 10 of the General Provisions of this Agreement,
the approval of a Termination Report by DHHS shall entitle the Contractor to receive that
portion of the Price Limitation earned to end Including the dale of termination. The
Contractor's obligation to continue to provide services under this Agreement shall cease
upon termination by DHHS.

10.7 in the event of termination under Paragraph 10 of the General Provisions of this Agreement,
upon termination the Contractor shall return to DHHS aD unencumbered program funds. If

HKbofHomM.b*. E*fttbttC-l-A®vtii0MtoSUnd»f4Pfovt*ton» Contfctty Inhlita
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Exhibit C.I

any, in its possosslon. DHHS shall have no further obligation to provide additional funds
under this Agreement upon termination, except those specified In 10.6 herein.

10.8 In the event of termination under Paragraph 10 of the General Provisions of this Agreement,
the approval of a termination Report by OHHS shall in no event relieve the Contractor from
any and all liability for damages sustained or Incurred by DHHS as a result of the
Contractor's breach of Its obligations hereunder.

3. The Otvtsion reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) eddllional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

4. Agreomont Elemonts/Ordor of Procodonco:

4.1 RFP.2017'D6H.O4.MOBILE Is hereby Incorporated Into this Agreement.

4.2 The Contractor's proposal submitted in response to RFP-2017-D8H.04.M08ILE.04 Is hereby
inoorporated Into this AgreennenL

4.3 The Agreement between the parties shall consist of the follovMng documents, and in the
event of any conflict or ambiguity between the Agreement documents, the docurnents shall
govern In tl^ following order of precedence: .
4.3.1 General Provisions (P-37);
4.3.2 Exhibit A Scope of Services;
4.3.3 Exhibit 8 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment;
4.3.4 Exhibit C Special Provisions;
4.3.5 Exhibit C-l Revisions to Special Provisions;
4.3.8 Exhibit O Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements;
4.3.7 Exhibit E Certification Regarding Lobbying;
4.3.6 Exhibit F Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility

Matters;
4.3.9 ^hibit G Certification of Compliance with Requirements Pertaining to Federal

Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and Whistleblower
Protections;

4.3.10 Exhibit H Certlficdtion Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke;
4.3.11 Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement;
4.3.11 Exhibit J Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and

Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance;
4.3.12 RFP-2017-DBH-04-M08IIE and all issued addenda; and
4.3.13 Contractor's proposal submitted in response to RFP-2017-0BHO4-MO81LE.

4.4 In the event of any conflict or contradicilon between or among the Agreement documents.'the
documents shall control in the above order of precedence.

Harbor Homos, bv. Exhibit C- \ - Revftlons to Stsndarrt Provlsioos Contractor InUsb . .
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ORUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the prowsions of
SectiortsS151-5160o1the Orug-FreeWorttplace Actof 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Trtle V. SubttUeO; 41
U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's rcprascntative. as idcnUfied in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wortolace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. SubtilJe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certificaUon by grantees (end by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to sward, that they wfll maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and bi inferenoe, sub-grantees and sutxontractors) that Is a State
may eteoi to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out bdow is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
tcnnination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

\

^ Commbsioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free wortcplaco by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dblribution.

dispensing, possession or use of a cbntroDed substance b.prohtbiled in the grantee's
worl^placc and specifying the actions that will be taken against emptoyees for violation of such
prohibiyon; . »

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee asstetance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performar>ce of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

cmptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted emptoyees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activfty the a>nvicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

J/
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant:

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendjar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or '

1.6.2. Requiring such cmptayee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or tocal health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate ̂ ency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worltplace through
imptementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided betow the stte(s> tor the iperformance of work done in
connection w^ the speciftc grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county^ stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Aajf^bor HotrULS .

iOtU.ftVlevlDate Uaml,Ve¥-f
Tide: Pyjg.'jvcicH' ^

D - C«rtiflc«tion rvQirding Drug Fr»o Conlrador tnlUab P
WoilrpUoe Roquiremortb U \ I \

•CUOmuJoiWiJ P»fl»2of2



New Hampshire DepartmenI of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor idontined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comf^ with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrlclions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy FamHles under Title rV-A
•Child Sup^ Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Servlces'Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX

. 'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tide IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai:

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cor^ress. or an employee of a Member of (Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modificalion of any Federal contract grant, toan, or cooperative agreemeni (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

. 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee df a Member of Congress In connecbon with this
Federal contract grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shafl complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Starwlard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this ccrtlficalion be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants.

•  loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representaticn of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352. Tide 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject lo a civil penalty of nol less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: jlOLfVpi'

HlUn m
Date

Title: 9r-c.S\Cw\T

ExhfeilE-C^rtlfiMlIooReflirtingLobbylnfl Contnctox ,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Ocbarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
reprcsentatiU. OS identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTlFiCATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

■ certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the ccrtlffcatton required below will no! necessarily result In denial
of palpation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participan! shall submit en
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation win be
considered in connection with the NH Departrnent of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participanl to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partidpation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is.a material representation of fact" upon which reliance was placed.
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
prfmary participant krtowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other renr>edie5
ayaDabte to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shaO provide Immediate written notioe to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective prinnary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous v^en submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaciton," "dcbarTed." "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person." 'primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

- 6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submittir>g this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covei^ transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower Her covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded .
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that-it will include the
dause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion >
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. vwlhout modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in e
lower tier covered transaction (hat it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonpmcurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowtedge and

ExtibU F - Ceitificttion R*o»rtlln(| Oebarmenl. Suxponslon Contiactor InhUb
And Othw RftipomlMlly Witters MlcTn
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intonnation of 8 participafU 1$ not required to exceed that which is rtormaHy possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who ts
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily exduded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS.may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowtedge end belief, that it and its

prfncipots:

11.1. are rtot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmcnt, doclared Ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by eny Federal department or agency;

11.2. have no) within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubfrc (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a put>llc transaction; viotation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or dviily charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certificalion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certirication. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to (his proposal (contract).

V

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certities to the best of its knowli^ge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineRgit^, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contracl).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneGglbility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lovrer Tier Covered Transactions,' without modirication in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: llGjvbof HcYYUi-'S -P^"

Mkln
Date Name:^,cV^»^ r\oA^

TlUe: ^
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rPRTlPlCATlOW OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FFDERAL wnNDISCRIMINATiON. EQUAL TREATWENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANgATION^ ftNO

WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of
representative as idcnlirwd in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followng
certification:

Contractor will compty. and wilt require any subgrantecs or sut>contractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscrtminatlon requirements, which may Include:
. the omnibus Crime Control and Sate Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) wtiich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employrront n^ctices w in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, natlonat ongln. and sex. The Act
requlres certain rccipienls.lo produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Rpcipienls of f^eral fui^mg u^er this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment ppportuntly Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity):
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and local

■government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C, Sections 1681,1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;
- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pl 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures)- Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith^jased and communityorganizations): Executive Order No. 13559. vriilch provide fundarnerital principles and poley-making •
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neightxirhood organizations;
- 28 C F R pt 38 (U S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Ofoanizations)- and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee VVhlstlebJower Protections, "which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

EichlbliG . .. . illL/
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the reclpieni will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Crvil Rights. to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, OTd
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

1

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing
ceftincalion;

\

I. By signing and submitting this prpposai (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: UOii'X'f .

Hit. In j
uEvDate Name:,^.,^,-

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

f

Public 103-227, Part C ♦ Environmentai Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facUily owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
direcBy or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to chikfren's services provided In private residences. faciOUes funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatieni drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the taw may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of op to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an admlnlstraiive compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: UOAiDJuTL H0^TTUU> '

Micin
Date

Title: ^
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLtTY ACT
RUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurarrce Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
vrith the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractorjhat
receive use or have access to protected health infofmation under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Doparlment of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

(j; -pesianated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoregation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f  "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in45CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TrtieXlli, Subtitle D. Part 1 S 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j  "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Stahdards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

K. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from 6r on behalf of Covered Entity. -

ConttKlorlnfttals
3/2014

HesOh Insuranc* Portabi&tY Act
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I  'RgQuired bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary* shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means prolecled health informalton that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or erwJorsed by
8 standards developing organization that is ecaedited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other DefinitiQr« • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

^2) Business Associate Use and Dlsclosuro of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees arxf agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disdose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below, or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the heallh care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under Ihe Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disdosure, 0)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disdosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disdosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disdosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by taw, without first notifying v
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief If Covered Entity'objects to such disclosure, the Business

W
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions-and shall not disdose PHI in violation of
such additiortal restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obltaationa and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
t«alth irrformation not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health infomiation of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessrrrant when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: ^ '

o The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, Induding the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disdosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sedions-of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal polides and procedures, bobte
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Assodate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein, including '
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assodate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

•  contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business A^ociate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to (he use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Sedion 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45.CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disdoisures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Er^tity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its ot>li9ations
to provide an accounting of disdosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly frorn the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonwanding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Busir>ess
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI

,  received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with ttw
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. W return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwiso agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the .
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discreUon. requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. ^

(4) Qhltoattons of Covered Entity

0  Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy PracUces provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate s
use or disclosure of PHI.

✓

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocationof permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Busirtess Associale under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508:

c. Covered entity shall promplty notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
.to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered'
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIsceltaneous

a  DefinHlons and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tlrrte. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

h  Amerwlrnent. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such acUon as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c  Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

rt InlerDfetation. The oarties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Secunty Rule.
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and cortditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense ar)d indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and corxJitions (P-37). shall survive the termlrvatlon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

DepartmentofHealthandHumanServlces UOlVV)Or VltPyTytCK
The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

\ ̂  f—£>><.

Name oTAuthorized Representative

"D
Title of Authorized Representative

Wh/i'^
Date

Name of the Contrac

ledi
m

Name of Authorized Representative

C£0
Title of Authorized Representative

^

Date

V20U CxKlbttI
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Now Hampahire Department of HoaMh and Human Services
ExhlbK J

CERTlFlCATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIimr AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Fimding Accountability and Transparency Acl (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25 000 the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS P)
10. Total compensation and names of the top .five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: Koxbcv t(jBKvuu> Inc.

Date Name:9t.Hx
Tttie: « CCD

CUOHHS/lt07l]
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FORMA

As (he Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 1

2.. In your business or organization's preceding compleled fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? ,

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. Stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following; '

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed ur>der section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (l5U.S.C.78m(a), 7eo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1386?

. NO
-S

YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization am as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

C\K»*tVtl07O
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